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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  

 

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 

 

 

 

The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2019. 

 

In the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements of the Company as set out on 
pages 7 to 48 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at  

December 31, 2019 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the 
financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the 
Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 

 

 

1 DIRECTORS 

 

 The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are: 

 

 Laurent Bernard Marie Junique 

 Lee Mui Joo Loretta 

 

 

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS 

 BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

 

 Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 

arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the 

acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate. 

 

 

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

 

 The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share 

capital of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings 

kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows: 

 

   Shareholdings in which director 

is deemed to have an interest 

Name of director and companies 

in which interests are held    

At beginning 

of year 

At end 

of year 

      

Laurent Bernard Marie Junique      

      

TDCX (SG) Pte. Ltd.      

(Ordinary shares)    1,201,049 1,201,049 
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  

 

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 

 

 

 

  Shareholdings registered 
in name of director 

Name of director and companies 

in which interests are held  

At beginning 

of year 

At end 

of year 

    

Laurent Bernard Marie Junique    

 

Holding company 

 

TDCX Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

   

(Ordinary shares)  249,999 249,999 

 

 

Subsidiary 

 

   

PT Teledirect Telecommerce    

(Ordinary shares)  10 10 

    

    

Lee Mui Joo Loretta    

 

Holding company 

 

TDCX Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

   

(Ordinary shares)  1 1 

 

 

4 SHARE OPTIONS 

 

 (a) Options to take up unissued shares 

 

  During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of the Company were granted. 

 

 

 (b) Options exercised 

 

  During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company issued by virtue of the exercise of 

an option to take up unissued shares. 

 

 

 (c) Unissued shares under option 

 

  At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under options. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TDCX (SG) Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”), which comprise the
statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 7 to 48.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2019 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the
Directors’ Statement set out on pages 1 to 3.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss
from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability
of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.



6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company incorporated
in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

June 12, 2020
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 2019 

 
 
 
 Note December  

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January 
1, 2018 

  $ $ $ 
   (Restated) (Restated) 
ASSETS     
     
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 7  8,267,548  764,295 2,228,573 
Fixed deposits 8  640,000  - - 

Trade receivables 10 20,989,329 19,221,605 14,189,009 
Contract assets 11 8,451,715 10,251,423 1,766,489 
Other receivables 12 32,273,514 15,051,112 1,033,027 

Total current assets  70,622,106 45,288,435 19,217,098 

     

Non-current assets     
Pledged deposits 9 1,900,000 1,900,000 - 
Other receivables 12 881,783 25,703,898 756,181 
Subsidiaries 13 842,386 678,137 408,954 
Plant and equipment 14 7,721,801 7,113,941 4,210,664 
Right-of-use assets 15 3,155,218 6,234,227 2,709,772 

Total non-current assets  14,501,188 41,630,203 8,085,571 

     
Total assets  85,123,294 86,918,638 27,302,669 

     
     
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     
     
Current liabilities     

Trade and other payables 16 15,998,625 17,345,995 6,324,526 
Bank loan 18 34,421,513 6,373,589 - 
Lease liabilities 19 1,828,714 3,105,539 1,354,598 
Income tax payable  4,929,488 2,534,639 1,030,639 

Total current liabilities  57,178,340 29,359,762 8,709,763 

     
Non-current liabilities     
Provision for reinstatement cost 17 1,024,000 1,090,000 500,000 
Bank loan 18 - 24,174,333 - 
Lease liabilities 19 1,575,465 3,404,180 1,389,215 
Deferred tax liabilities 20 233,000 362,166 308,213 

Total non-current liabilities  2,832,465 29,030,679 2,197,428 

     
Capital and reserves     
Share capital 21 2,001,749 2,001,749 2,001,750 
Retained earnings  23,110,740 26,526,448 14,393,728 

Total equity  25,112,489 28,528,197 16,395,478 

     
Total liabilities and equity  85,123,294 86,918,638 27,302,669 

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 
 
 Note 2019 2018 

  $ $ 

   (Restated) 
    
Revenue 22 149,198,167 85,190,536 
    
Other operating income 23 19,030,504 4,343,769 
    
Employee benefits expense 25 (60,785,473) (42,072,434) 

    
Sub-contracting costs 5 (52,733,169) (20,751,913) 
    
Depreciation expense  (7,871,875) (4,251,131) 
    
Rental and maintenance expenses  (1,667,029) (1,025,880) 
    

Recruitment expense  (672,491) (866,562) 
    
Transport and travelling expenses  (390,358) (252,436) 
    
Telecommunication and technology expense  (837,304) (483,282) 
    

Other operating expenses  (1,922,165) (1,757,006) 
    
Finance costs  (1,592,128) (403,542) 

    
Profit before income tax  39,756,679 17,670,119 
    

Income tax expense 24 (4,672,387) (2,534,774) 

    
Profit for the year, representing total    
   comprehensive income for the year 25 35,084,292 15,135,345 

    
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 
 
  Share Retained  
 Note capital earnings Total 

  $ $ $ 
     
Balance at January 1, 2018   2,001,750 14,421,982 16,423,732 
     
Effects of adoption of FRS 116  - (28,254) (28,254) 

     

Balance at January 1, 2018 (restated)  2,001,750 14,393,728 16,395,478 
     
Profit for the year, representing total     
   comprehensive income for the year  - 15,135,345 15,135,345 
 
Transaction with owners,     
   recognised directly in equity:     

   Share reduction  (1) - (1) 
   Dividends 27 - (3,002,625) (3,002,625) 

     
Balance at December 31, 2018 (restated)  2,001,749 26,526,448 28,528,197 
     

Profit for the year, representing total     
   comprehensive income for the year  - 35,084,292 35,084,292 
 
Transaction with owners,     
   recognised directly in equity:     
   Dividends 27 - (38,500,000) (38,500,000) 

     
Balance at December 31, 2019  2,001,749 23,110,740 25,112,489 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 
 
 2019 2018 

 $ $ 

  (Restated) 
Operating activities   
 Profit before income tax 39,756,679 17,670,119 
 Adjustments for:   
  Depreciation expense 7,871,875  4,251,131  

Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets (21,393) - 
Additional loss allowance 44,942  23,092  

  Interest expense 1,592,128  403,542  
  Interest income (1,405,069)  (354,582) 

Dividend income (Note B) (14,687,268)  (2,552,382) 
  Bank facility fee 54,368  6,333  
  Loss on disposal and write-off of plant and equipment 67  17,118  

 Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 33,206,329 19,464,371 

   
  Trade receivables (1,767,724) (5,032,596) 

Contract assets 1,799,708 (8,484,934) 
  Other receivables  7,554,771   (8,295,305) 
  Trade and other payables  (1,368,788)  11,021,469  

 Cash generated from operations 39,424,296  8,673,005  
   
 Interest received  1,405,069  60,993 
 Income tax paid  (2,385,286) (1,194,059) 
 Income tax refunded  - 217,238 

Net cash from operating activities 38,444,079 7,757,177 

   
Investing activities   
 Purchase of plant and equipment (Note A)  (5,272,648) (4,493,091) 
 Reinstatement paid (66,000) - 
 Increase in fixed deposits  (640,000) - 

 Increase in pledged deposits - (1,900,000) 
 Loan to holding company  - (30,400,000) 
 Dividend income received (Note B)  14,523,019  2,469,949 
 Additional investment in subsidiaries (Note B)  - (186,750) 

Net cash from (used in) investing activities 8,544,371 (34,509,892) 

   
Financing activities   
 Dividends paid (38,500,000) (3,002,625) 
 Share reduction  - (1) 
 Proceeds from loans and borrowings  10,000,000 30,400,000 

Payment of bank loan  (6,080,000) - 

Repayment of lease liabilities  (3,405,269) (1,956,937) 
   Interest paid (1,384,928) - 
 Bank facility fee paid (115,000) (152,000) 

Net cash (used in) from financing activities (39,485,197) 25,288,437 

   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,503,253 (1,464,278) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 764,295 2,228,573 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7) 8,267,548 764,295 
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TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d) 
Year ended December 31, 2019 

 
 
 
Note A: During the year, the additions to plant and equipment totaling $5,272,648 (2018 : $5,083,091) 

comprises paid purchases totaling $5,272,648 (2018 : $4,493,091) and a provision of $Nil 
(2018 : $590,000) for estimated future reinstatement cost relating to office improvements. 

  

Note B: During the year, dividend income of $164,249 (2018 : $82,433) from a subsidiary was capitalized 
as additional share capital investment in the subsidiary. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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December 31, 2019 
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1 GENERAL 
 
 The Company (Registration No. 199507681R) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal 

place of business and registered office at 750D Chai Chee Road, #06-01/06 Viva Business Park, 

Singapore 469004.  The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars. 
 
 The principal activities of the Company are the provision of outsourced contact services for sales and 

marketing, customer care and content monitoring. 
 
 The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 were authorised for 

issue by the Board of Directors on June 12, 2020. 
 
 
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical 

cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with 

the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”). 
 
 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and 

services. 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 

directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which 
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on 
such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 116 Leases, and 
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in 

FRS 36 Impairment of Assets. 
 
 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 

or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

 
 • Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date; 
 
 • Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
 
 • Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 

 
 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted all the new 

and revised FRSs and INT FRS that are effective from that date and are relevant to its operations. The 
adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the Company’s 
accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years 
except as discussed below. 
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FRS 116 Leases 
 
 FRS 116 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces 

significant changes to lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance lease 

and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the 
requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. The impact of the adoption of 
FRS 116 on the Company’s financial statements is described below.  

 
The date of initial application of FRS 116 for the Company is January 1, 2019 and the Company has 

applied FRS 116 using full retrospective approach, with restatement of the comparative information. 
 
 
 (a) Impact of the new definition of a lease 
 

The Company has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to FRS 116 not to 
reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. 

 
The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. FRS 116 determines 
whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. This is in contrast 
to the focus on 'risks and rewards' in FRS 17 and INT FRS 104. 

 
The Company applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in FRS 116 to all 

lease contracts entered into or modified (whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract). 
The new definition in FRS 116 does not significantly change the scope of contracts that meet the 
definition of a lease for the Company. 

 
 
 (b) Impact on lessee accounting 

 
Former operating leases 

 

FRS 116 changes how the Company accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases 
under FRS 17, which were off balance sheet. 
 
Applying FRS 116, for all leases, the Company:  

 
a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, 

initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments; 
 
b) Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in statement 

of profit or loss; 
 

c) Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing 
activities) and interest (presented within financing activities) in the statement of cash flows. 
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Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of 
use assets and lease liabilities whereas under FRS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease 
incentive, amortised as a reduction of rental expenses generally on a straight-line basis. 

 

 Under FRS 116, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with FRS 36 
Impairment of Assets. 

 
 For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as 

tablet and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones), the Company has 
opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by FRS 116. This expense 

is presented within ‘Rental and maintenance expenses’ in statement of profit or loss. 
 
 
 (c) Financial impact of initial application of FRS 116 
 
  The effects of adopting FRS 116 under the full-retrospective approach are presented and explained 

below: 

 
(i) Impact on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:  

 
  2019 2018 

  $ $ 

    
    
 Increase in depreciation expenses 3,207,154 2,088,435 
 Decrease in rental and maintenance expenses (3,405,269) (1,956,937) 
 Increase in finance costs 192,977 109,953 
 Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets (21,393) - 
 Decrease in income tax expenses 4,510 (41,047) 

 (Increase) Decrease in profit for the year  (22,021) 200,404 

 

 
(ii) Impact on the statement of financial position:  
 

 
 

As previously 
reported  

FRS 116 
adjustments As restated 

  $ $ $ 

 At January 1, 2018    
     
 Right-of-use assets - 2,709,772 2,709,772 
 Deferred tax liabilities (314,000) 5,787 (308,213) 
 Leases liabilities - (2,743,813) (2,743,813) 
 Retained earnings (14,421,982) 28,254 (14,393,728) 

     
     
 At December 31, 2018    
     

 Right-of-use assets - 6,234,227 6,234,227 
 Deferred tax liabilities (409,000) 46,834 (362,166) 
 Leases liabilities - (6,509,719) (6,509,719) 
 Retained earnings (26,755,106) 228,658 (26,526,448) 
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 Under FRS 17  

FRS 116 
adjustments As presented 

  $ $ $ 
 At December 31, 2019    
     
 Right-of-use assets - 3,155,218 3,155,218 
 Deferred tax liabilities (275,324) 42,324 (233,000) 
 Leases liabilities - (3,404,179) (3,404,179) 
 Retained earnings (23,317,377) 206,637 (23,110,740) 

 
 
 The application of FRS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under FRS 17 

resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. It also resulted in an 
increase in depreciation expenses and finance cost whereas a decrease in rental and 
maintenance and income tax expenses. 

 
 

(iii) Impact on the statement of cash flow: 
 
 The application of FRS 116 has an impact on the statement of cash flows of the Company.  
 
 Under FRS 116, lessees must present: 
 

• Short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease 
payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability as part of operating 
activities; 

 
• Cash paid for the interest portion of a lease liability as either operating activities or 

financing activities, as permitted by FRS 7 (the Company has opted to include interest 
paid as part of financing activities); and 

 
• Cash payments for the principal portion for a lease liability, as part of financing 

activities. 
 

 Under FRS 17, all lease payments on operating leases were presented as part of the cash 
flows from operating activities.  

 
 Consequently, the net cash generated by operating activities has increased by $3,405,269 

(2018 : $1,956,937), being the lease payments, and net cash used in financing activities has 
increased by the same amount. 

 
 The adoption of FRS 116 did not have an impact on net cash flows. 

 
 

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments 
to FRS that are relevant to the Company were issued but not yet effective: 

 
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 
 
• Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and FRS 8 Accounting Policies, 

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material 
 
• Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations: Definition of a Business 
 
• Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in FRS Standards 
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Management anticipates that the adoption of the above/other FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS 
in future periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements in the period of their initial 
adoption. 

 

 
 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 

have not been prepared as the Company itself is a wholly-owned subsidiary of another company. 
Publicly available consolidated financial statements are prepared by the holding company, TDCX 
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as Agorae Pte Ltd), incorporated in Singapore, whose registered 
address is 750D Chai Chee Road, #06-01/06 Viva Business Park, Singapore 469004. 

 
 
 SUBSIDIARIES - Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the 

Company: 
 

• Has power over the investee; 
 

• Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
 

• Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 
 
 The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that 

there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 
 

 Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost, less any impairment in net recoverable value that has 
been recognised in profit or loss. 

 
 
 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement 

of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. 

 

 
Financial assets 

 Classification of financial assets 

 

 Debt instruments mainly comprise cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables which meet 
the following conditions and are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 

 
•  The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 

order to collect contractual cash flows; and 
 
•  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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 Amortised cost and effective interest method 

 
 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and 

of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 

 
 The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts  

(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the 
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying 
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 

 
 The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 

recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for 
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised 
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 

 

 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured 
subsequently at amortised cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand, demand deposits 
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
 
 Impairment of financial assets 

 
 The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) trade and other 

receivables and contract asset. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date 
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. 

 
 The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets. The expected 

credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s 

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the 
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. 

 
For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the 
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures 

the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment 
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk 
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being  
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

 
 Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime 
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within  
12 months after the reporting date. 

 
  



TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2019 

 
 
 

18 

 Significant increase in credit risk 

 
 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 

the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of 
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered 
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate. 

 

The Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has 
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 

 
 The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly 

since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting 
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a 

low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations 
in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, 
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 

 
 The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are 
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 

 
 
 Definition of default 

 
 The Company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past 

due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more 

lagging default criterion is more appropriate. 
 
 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

 
 A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. 

 
 

Write-off policy 

 
The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is 
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty 
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written 

off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking 
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. 
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Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

 
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of 

the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented 
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. 

 
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 

Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the 
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount 
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date. 

 

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 

 
 

Derecognition of financial assets 
 

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 

borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
 
 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
 
 Classification as debt or equity 
 

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

 
 
 Equity instruments 
 

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs. 
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 Trade and other payables 
 
 Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense 

recognised on an effective yield basis, except for short-term payables when the recognition of interest 
would be immaterial. 

 
 

Bank loans 
 

Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method. Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method 
is recognised over the term of the borrowing in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for 
borrowing costs (see below). 

 
 
 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

 
 
 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

any accumulated impairment losses. 

 
 Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using 

the straight-line method, on the following bases: 
  Years 
   
Leasehold improvements - Shorter of the useful lives or the lease terms 

(ranging from 2 to 6 years) 
Furniture and fittings - 5 
Office equipment and software - 3 to 5 

 
 Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 
 
 The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, 

with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
 The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of a plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
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 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews 
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not 

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 
 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In assessing value 

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
 If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 

amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

 
 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. 

 
 

PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 
 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 

the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 
 
 When some or all other economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 

from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 
 

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract 
with a customer and recognized as and when control of a service is transferred to a customer. 

 
Revenues are recognized upon the application of the following steps: 

 
1. Identification of the contract or contracts with a customer; 
2. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract; 

3. Determination of the transaction price; 
4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 
5. Recognition of revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. 
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The Company enters into master services agreements and statements of work which set out the details 
of the work streams for each campaign to be provided to the customers. The work streams are 
generally capable of being distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations. Based on 
the transaction price as set up in the agreement for each performance obligation, the Company will 

invoice to the customers on a monthly basis as each performance obligation is satisfied after agreeing 
with the customers on any fee adjustments based on whether the Company meets (or the failure to 
meet) certain key performance indicators (where applicable) during that month. The Company 
recognizes the revenue using the right to invoice practical expedient as the output method because 
the amount it has the right to invoice corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the 
Company’s performance completed to date, and any variable consideration would be resolved at the 

point of billing. 
 

A contract asset is recorded when revenue is recognized prior to invoicing and a contract liability is 
recorded when the Company invoices the customers prior to satisfying the performance obligations.  
The contracts do not include a significant financing component as the normal credit term is between 
30 to 90 days. 

 

Revenue recognized from contracts with customers is disaggregated into categories that depict how 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. 

 
• Customer care - The Company provides customer care services by providing information about 

its clients, products and services to their customers. The objective is to help its clients manage 
their relationships with their customers. This includes technical support for software, consumer 
electronic devices and telemarketing campaigns. Customer contact occurs through phone call, 

online chat, SMS, email and a variety of other channels and are typically on general enquiries or 
after-sales service issue resolution. Each service is viewed as one performance obligation and 
revenue is recognized over time by using the output method when the performance obligation is 
satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the service performed to date. 

 
• Sales and marketing - The Company provides sales and marketing services through contacts 

made by the Company’s sales and digital marketing agents with the objective to promote and sell 
the products of its customers.  This primarily involves helping the digital advertising platform 
clients to attract more advertisers and grow their Internet and social media advertising 
businesses. Each scope of service is viewed as one performance obligation and revenue is 
recognized over time by using the output method when the performance obligation is satisfied on 
a monthly basis measured by the value of the service performed to date. 

 

• Content monitoring and moderation - The Company provides content monitoring and moderation 
services to a customer by way of content moderating, identification review, authenticity and 
access flows and other related services. This is performed through review of social media 
platforms for content that violates terms of service or is illegal pursuant to the specifications and 
guidelines provided by the client. Revenue is recognized over time by using the output method 
when the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the 
service performed to date. 

 
• Workspace and payroll outsourcing - The Company provides workspace and payroll outsourcing 

through provision of fully equipped and serviced workstations and provision of payroll and human 
resource administration services to some of its customers. Revenue is recognized over time when 
the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the service 
performed to date.  Value of the service performed is determined based on the hours incurred 

times a fixed rate as stipulated in the contract. Any variabilities in the transaction price are 
resolved before each billing.  
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• Project setup and system configuration - The Company provides services relating to program 
setup, configuration services of core contact center technology infrastructure like for example 
telephony and interactive voice response system required by new or existing contact center 
projects. Revenue is recognized at the point in time when the service is performed. 

 
Given that the Company mainly recognizes revenue for the amount to which it has the right to invoice, 
it has decided to apply the practical disclosure solution provided in FRS 115, through which it is not 
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the obligations of 
performance not met (or partially not met) at the end of the reporting period. 

 

The Company incurred certain costs such as personnel and travel costs, hiring and training employees 
and capital expenditures incurred in infrastructure, renovation and leases of office space which are 
incidental to its contracts with the customers. FRS 115 requires an entity to recognize an asset from 
the costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer if the costs are not within the scope of another 
FRS Standard, and only if those costs meet all the following criteria: 

 
• the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Company can 

specifically identify; 
 
• the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying 

(or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and 
 
• the costs are expected to be recovered. 

 

The Company recognized costs as expenses as they are incurred when they relate to personnel and 
travelling, hiring and training employees when they do not meet the criteria above. In cases where 
the start-up costs to fulfil a contract includes capital expenditures in infrastructure, renovation and 
leases of offices space, those costs are recorded based on the guidance included in FRS 16 Property 

Plant and Equipment and FRS 116 Leases. 

 

 
 Interest income 
 
 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 

interest rate applicable. 
 
 

 GOVERNMENT GRANTS - Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance 
that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. 

 
 Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs 

for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Grants that are receivable as 
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial 
support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in income or expenditure in the 

period in which they become receivable. 
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 LEASES (before January 1, 2018) - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 

 

 Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern 
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under 
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 
 

LEASES (from January 1, 2018) – The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at 
inception of the contract on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company recognizes a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the 
lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and 
leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and 
telephones). For these leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense 

on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date. The lease payment shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the 
incremental borrowing rate. The Company’s incremental borrowing rate is determined based on the 

interest rate of the Company’s bank loans if the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value of the 
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. 

 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 

 

• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives 
receivable; 

 
• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;  

 
• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 

 
• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease. 
 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line (current and non-current) in the statement of financial 
position. 

 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on 
the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect 
the lease payments made. 
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The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) whenever: 

 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting 

in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting 
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change 

is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). 
 

• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, 
in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by 
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the 
modification. 

 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease 
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial 
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. 

 
Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a lease improvement 
asset and restore the underlying lease assets to their original condition required by the terms and 

conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized to the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use 
asset. 

 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of contracted lease term and useful life of 
the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset 

is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement 
date of the lease. 

 
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 

 
The Company applies FRS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Plant and Equipment’ policy. 

 
 
 BORROWING COSTS - Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the 
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised 
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

 
 

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged 
as an expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. 
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Central 
Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Company’s 

obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit 
plan. 
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 EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
accrue to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 

 

 
 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred  

tax. 
 
 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 

reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items 

of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that 
are not taxable or tax deductible.  The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the Company 
operate by the end of the reporting period. 

 
 Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor 
the accounting profit. 

 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax 
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests 
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against 
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 

foreseeable future. 
 
 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. 

 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities 
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company 
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

 
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 

taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
 
 Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss. 
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The financial statements of the Company 
are measured and presented in Singapore dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (its functional currency). 

 

In preparing the financial statements of the company, transactions in currencies other than the 
Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. At the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences 
arising on the settlement of monetary items and on retranslation of monetary items are included in 

profit or loss for the period. 
 
 
3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 
 In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management 

is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. 

 
 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. 
 
 
 Critical judgements in applying the entity accounting policies 

 
 Management is of the opinion that any instances of application of judgements are not expected to have 

a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
 
 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
 The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below: 
 
 (a) Expected credit loss for trade receivables and contract assets 
 
  The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix based on 

the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the 
debtors, general economic conditions. The carrying amount of the trade receivables and contract 

assets at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial 
statements. 

 
The management has assessed that, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade 
receivables past due, based on historical experience in the collection of receivables and ECL 
assessment. These receivables are mainly arising from customers that have a good credit record 

with the Company. 
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 (b) Impairment in value of investment in subsidiaries 
 
  The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss.  

The Company follows the guidance of FRS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether its 

investments in subsidiaries are impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In 
making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the market and economic 
environment in which the subsidiaries operate, economic performance of these entities, the 
duration and extent to which the cost of investments in these entities exceed their net tangible 
assets values and fair value of investments less cost to sell. 

 

  During the year, the management has assessed the carrying value of the Company’s investment 
in subsidiaries by considering the financial performance and net tangible assets of the respective 
subsidiaries and as of December 31, 2019, the allowance for impairment in subsidiaries 
amounted to $891,867 (December 31, 2018 : $891,867, January 1, 2018 : $891,867). 

 
  If the performance of the respective subsidiaries and/or market conditions were to deteriorate 

which will affect the Company’s investments in subsidiaries, additional impairment may be 

required. The carrying amount at the investment in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 10. 
 
 
4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
 The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period: 
 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
Financial assets    
Amortised cost  64,542,902 62,233,959 17,839,586 

    
    
Financial liabilities    

Amortised cost 50,239,930 47,803,813 5,906,926 
Lease liabilities 3,404,179 6,509,719 2,743,813 
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(i) Credit risk management 
 
  The Company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring 

its credit risk.  The Company only grants credit to creditworthy counterparties, based on the credit 

evaluation process by management. 
 
  The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their 

obligations as the end of financial year in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the 
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the statement of financial position. 

 

  The Company’s cash are placed with reputable financial institutions. 
 
  The Company has concentration of credit risk as 85% (December 31, 2018 : 25%, January 1, 

2018 : 31%) of its trade receivables are due from two customers (2018 : one customer). 
Allowances for potential credit losses are made when necessary. Further details of credit risks on 
trade receivables are disclosed in Note 10. 

 

 The Company develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures according 
to their degree of risk of default. The Company uses its own trading records to rate its major 
customers and other debtors. 

 
The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 

 

Category 
 

Description 
 

Basis for recognising 
expected credit 
losses (ECL) 
 

 

Performing 

 

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 
not have any past-due amounts. 
 

 

12-month ECL 

Doubtful Amount is more than 30 days past due or there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. 

 

Lifetime ECL -  
not credit-impaired 

In default Amount is more than 90 days past due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired. 
 

Lifetime ECL -  
credit-impaired 

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in 
severe financial difficulty and the company has no 
realistic prospect of recovery. 
 

Amount is written off 
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The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets as well as maximum 
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades: 

 
    

Note 

Internal 

credit 

rating 

12-month or 

lifetime ECL 

Gross carrying 

amount 

Loss 

allowance 

Net carrying 

amount 

       $ $ $ 

   December 31, 2019       

          

   Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

20,989,329 - 20,989,329 

 

 

   Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

8,451,715 - 8,451,715 

          

   Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 36,538,531 (3,792,506) 32,746,025 

        (3,792,506)  

          

   December 31, 2018       

          

   Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

19,221,605 - 19,221,605 

          

   Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

10,251,423 - 10,251,423 

          

   Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 44,095,623 (3,747,564) 40,348,059 

        (3,747,564)  

          

   January 1, 2018       

          

   Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

14,189,009 - 14,189,009 

          

   Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified approach) 

1,766,489 - 1,766,489 

          

   Other receivables 12 (a) Performing   5,146,476 (3,724,472) 1,422,004 

        (3,724,472)  

 
 

(a) The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision 
matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status 
of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future 
economic conditions. 

 
 Further details of credit risk on trade receivables and other receivables are disclosed in 

Notes 10 and 12 respectively. 
 
 

(ii) Interest rate risk management 
 

Interest rate risk arises from the potential changes in interest rates that may have an adverse 
effect on the Company in the current reporting period and future years. 

 
As at December 31, 2019, the Company’s primary interest rate relates to interest-bearing bank 
loan. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank loan are disclosed in Note 18 of the 
financial statements. 
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Interest rate sensitivity 

 
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for 
both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period and the 

stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant 
throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis 
point increase or decrease is used and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably 
possible change in interest rates. 

 
As at December 31, 2019, it is estimated that a 50 basis point change in interest rates will affect 

the Company’s profit before tax by $171,600 (2018 : $152,000). 
 
 
 (iii) Foreign currency risk management 
 

  The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuations in United States dollars and Malaysia ringgit with 
its functional currency. 

 
  At the end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of significant monetary assets and monetary 

liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are as follows: 

 
 Assets Liabilities 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
       
United States dollar 5,742,573 7,835,594 29,643 7,102,515 3,245,590 - 

Malaysia ringgit - - - 587,303 3,035,124 451,385 

 

 

  Foreign currency sensitivity 

 

  The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% strengthening/weakening in the functional 
currency against the relevant foreign currencies. If the Singapore dollar strengthens/weakens by 
5% against the relevant foreign currencies, profit or loss will (decrease)/increase by: 
    
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    
United States dollar (67,997) 229,500 1,482 
Malaysia ringgit (29,365) (151,756) (22,569) 

 
 

  The sensitivity rate of 5% is the change in foreign exchange rate that management deems 
reasonably possible which will affect outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items at 
period end. 

 
 

(iv) Liquidity risk management 
 
  Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The Company maintains 

sufficient cash and cash equivalents and internally generated cash flows to finance its operations. 
The Company mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining some standby credit lines available. 
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Liquidity and interest risk analyses 

 
Financial liabilities 

 

 The following table shows cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 
the Company can be required to pay. The adjustments in the table represent estimated interest 
for the future period up to the maturity dates of the respective financial liabilities. 

 

    
Interest  

rate 

On demand  
or within  
1 year 

Within 2 
to  

5 years Adjustments Total 

    % $ $ $ $ 

   December 31, 2019      
         
   Non-interest bearing  15,818,417 - - 15,818,417 

   
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 

2.4% to 
4.1% 1,929,239 1,605,999 (131,059) 3,404,179 

   
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  

3.0% to 
4.7% 36,624,987 - (2,203,474) 34,421,513 

         
         
   December 31, 2018      
         
   Non-interest bearing - 17,255,891 - - 17,255,891 

   
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 

2.5% to 
4.1% 3,137,358 3,535,238 (162,877) 6,509,719 

   
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  4.7% 7,401,640 26,748,960 (3,602,678) 30,547,922 

         
         
   January 1, 2018      
         
   Non-interest bearing - 5,906,926 - - 5,906,926 

   
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 2.5% 1,408,297 1,251,529 83,987 2,743,813 

         

 
All financial assets as at December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2018 are 
repayable on demand or due within one year from the end of the reporting period, and are non-
interest bearing, except for pledged deposits and non-current other receivables as disclosed in 
Notes 9 and 12 respectively. 

 
 

 (v) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
 The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position 

approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial 
instruments. The fair values of other classes of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed on the 
respective notes to the financial statements. 
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 Capital risk management policies and objectives 
 

 Management reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Company will be able to 
continue as a going concern. The capital structure comprises only issued capital and retained 

earnings. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the previous financial year. 
 
 
5 HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANIES 
 
 In 2018, the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of TDCX Holdings Pte Ltd, incorporated in 

Singapore, which is also the Company’s ultimate holding company. Related companies refer to members 
of the holding company’s group of companies. 

 
 Some of the Company’s transactions and arrangements are between members of the holding company 

and the effect of these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial 
statements. The intercompany balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless 
otherwise stated. 

 
 Significant transactions with holding company and related companies:  

   
 2019 2018 

 $ $ 

Holding company   
   
Interest income 1,300,327 293,589 

   

   
Subsidiaries   
   
Sub-contracting costs (48,752,664) (20,216,751) 
Interest income 79,261 60,993 
Dividend income 14,687,268 2,552,382 

Recovery of reimbursable expenses 2,283,386 899,234 

   
   
Related companies   

   
Sub-contracting costs (3,980,505) (535,162) 
Recovery of reimbursable expenses - 18,055 
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6 RELATED PARTIES 
 
 Compensation of directors and key management personnel 

 

 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows: 
 

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
   

Short-term benefits 3,933,667 1,477,887 
Post-employment benefits 52,020 34,680 

 3,985,687 1,512,567 

 
 
7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 December 

31, 2019 

December 

31, 2018 

January  

1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    

Cash on hand 382 1,440 2,904 

Cash at bank 8,267,166 762,855 2,225,669 

 8,267,548 764,295 2,228,573 

 
 

8 FIXED DEPOSITS 
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    

Fixed deposits 640,000 - - 

 

 
 Fixed deposits bear interest at an effective interest rate of 0.75% per annum and for tenure of 365 

days. 
 
 
9 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    

Pledged deposits 1,900,000 1,900,000 - 

 
 

The deposits were pledged to a financial institution for securing bank loans (Note 18).  
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10 TRADE RECEIVABLES 
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 

    

Outside parties 20,989,329 19,221,605 14,189,009 

 
 

The credit period on rendering of service to outside parties is 30 to 60 days (December 31, 2018 and 
January 1, 2018 : 30 to 60 days). No interest is charge on the outstanding trade receivables. 

 
 Trade receivables amounting to $1,512,273 (December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2018 : $1,484,178) 

are pledged to two guarantors (2018 : a guarantor) for a performance guarantee issued in favour of 
two customers. 

 

Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past 
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, and where relevant, general economic conditions of the industry 
in which the debtors operate. 

 

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the 
current reporting period. 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the management has assessed that, based on historical 
and default experience in the collection of receivables and ECL model, the receivables are assessed to 
have low credit risk and the expected credit loss on trade receivables is assessed to be insignificant. 

 

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers based on 
the Company’s provision matrix. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not show 
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance 
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Company’s different customer base. 

 
   Trade receivables - days past due 

   Current 
1 - 30 
days 

31 - 60 
days 

61 - 90 
days 

> 90 
days Total 

   $ $ $ $ $ $ 

  December 31, 2019       

         

  
Estimated total gross 

carrying amount at default:    
  

 

         

  Outside parties 18,400,152 738,728 1,630,576 - 219,873 20,989,329 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   18,400,152 738,728 1,630,576 - 219,873 20,989,329 

         

  December 31, 2018       

         

  
Estimated total gross 
  carrying amount at default:    

  
 

         

  Outside parties 15,425,276 3,613,776 144,485 10,900 27,168 19,221,605 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   15,425,276 3,613,776 144,485 10,900 27,168 19,221,605 
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   Trade receivables - days past due 

   Current 
1 - 30 
days 

31 - 60 
days 

61 - 90 
days 

> 90 
days Total 

   $ $ $ $ $ $ 

  January 1, 2018       

         

  
Estimated total gross 
  carrying amount at default:    

  
 

         

  Outside parties 8,079,385 3,518,157 2,217,616 144,236 229,615 14,189,009 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   8,079,385 3,518,157 2,217,616 144,236 229,615 14,189,009 

         

 
 Movement in the loss allowance: 

 December  
31, 2019 

December  
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 

    
Balance at beginning of year - - 211,313 
Write-off during the year - - (147,489) 
Credit to profit or loss - - (63,824) 

Balance at end of year - - - 

 
 
11 CONTRACT ASSETS 

 December 

31, 2019 

December 

31, 2018 

January  

1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 

    

Unbilled receivables 8,451,715 10,251,423 1,766,489 

 

 
 Unbilled receivables are balances owed by the customers that arise from services performed. Any 

amount previously recognized as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at 
which it is invoiced to the customer. 

 
 Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount equal to 

lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the 
industry in which the customers operate in. None of the amounts due from customers at the end of 
the reporting period is past due and management considered the amount to have low credit risk. 

 
 
  



TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD. (formerly known as TELEDIRECT PTE LTD)  
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2019 

 
 
 

37 

12 OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    
Prepayments 409,272 406,951 367,204 
Deposits 1,273,381 1,923,324 1,040,200 
Holding company (Note 5) 30,675,577 30,704,310 - 
Related companies (Note 5) 130,746 74,495 246,468 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 4,456,206 11,291,934 3,789,968 
Others 2,621 101,560 69,840 

 36,947,803 44,502,574 5,513,680 
Less: Loss allowance for amounts due from  
           subsidiaries (3,792,506) (3,747,564) (3,724,472) 

 33,155,297 40,755,010 1,789,208 

    
    

Analysed as:    
   Current 32,273,514 15,051,112 1,033,027 
   Non-current 881,783 25,703,898 756,181 

 33,155,297 40,755,010 1,789,208 

 
 
Non-current deposits relate to a cash collateral on a guarantee facility, refundable deposits for office 
tenancies and utilities that are non-interest bearing and are due for repayment in 2020 to 2022 
(December 31, 2018 : 2020 and 2021, January 1, 2018 : 2019 and 2020). The carrying amount 

approximates its fair value. 
 

The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 
The non-trade amount due from holding company relates to external loan borrowed and loaned to the 
holding company at the same borrowing terms as disclosed in Note 18. The balance is unsecured, bears 
interest calculated based on aggregate of margin of 3% and cost of funds of the financial institution 

lender and is repayable quarterly commencing on February 15, 2019 and will continue until November 15, 
2023. In 2019, the non-trade amount due from holding company has been classified as current due to 
technical breach of a bank covenant by the Company to the financial institution lender. 

 
 For purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables are considered to have low credit risk as they 

are not due for payment at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant increase in 
the risk of default on the receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment 

assessment for these receivables, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month 
expected credit losses (ECL). 

 
 In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the historical default experience and the 

financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors that may be specific to the debtors in 
estimating the probability of default of each of these receivables, as well as the loss upon default in each 
case. Management has determined that those receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss other than 

what has been provided. 
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 Movement in loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries: 
 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January 
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    
Balance at beginning of year 3,747,564 3,724,472 3,709,740 
Charge to profit or loss 44,942 23,092 14,732 

Balance at end of year 3,792,506 3,747,564 3,724,472 

 
 

13 SUBSIDIARIES 
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    
Unquoted equity shares, at cost 1,734,253 1,570,004 1,300,821 

Less: Impairment loss (891,867) (891,867) (891,867) 

 842,386 678,137 408,954 

 
 
 Movement in allowance for impairment of subsidiaries: 
 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
    
Balance at beginning and end of year 891,867 891,867 891,867 

 
 

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: 
 

 

Name of subsidiaries 

Place of 

incorporation 

and operation 

Proportion of  

ownership interest 

Proportion of  

voting power held Principal activity 

  December  

31, 2019 

December  

31, 2018 

January  

1, 2018 

December  

31, 2019 

December  

31, 2018 

January  

1, 2018 

 

  % % % % % %  

         
TDCX (MY) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia 100 100 99.99 100 100 99.99 Provision of sales and 

marketing, customer care 

services and disaster 

recovery site. 

         
Teledirect  

Telecommerce 

(Thailand) Limited 

Thailand 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 Provision of sales 

acquisition, customer care 

services, and content 

monitoring. 

         

PT Teledirect 
Telecommerce * 

Indonesia 100 100 100 100 100 100 Dormant. 

         

Comparexpress 

Insurance Broker 

(Thailand) Limited 

Thailand 100 100 100 100 100 100 Provision of insurance 

brokerage service and 

online price comparison 

services. 
         

Comparexpress 

Pte Ltd 

Singapore 100 100 100 100 100 100 Provision of online price 

comparison portal service. 

 
 
*  Disposed subsequent to end of year.  
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

Leasehold 
improvements 

Furniture  
and 

fittings 

Office 
equipment 

and software Total 
 
 

 $ $ $ $ 
Cost:     
   At January 1, 2018 3,718,513 171,392  5,837,777  9,727,682 
   Additions 2,623,465 612,177  1,847,449  5,083,091 

   Written off (568,109) (159,210)  (1,299,766) (2,027,085) 

   At December 31, 2018 5,773,869 624,359  6,385,460  12,783,688 
   Additions 2,616,774 587,112  2,068,762  5,272,648 
   Written off (411,745) (3,250)  (8,552) (423,547) 

   At December 31, 2019 7,978,898 1,208,221  8,445,670  17,632,789 

     
Accumulated depreciation:     
   At January 1, 2018 1,641,449 162,260  3,713,309  5,517,018 
   Depreciation for the year 893,449 50,282  1,218,965  2,162,696 
   Written off (564,259) (157,121)  (1,288,587) (2,009,967) 

   At December 31, 2018 1,970,639 55,421  3,643,687  5,669,747 
   Depreciation for the year 2,858,015 219,330  1,587,376  4,664,721 
   Written off (411,745) (3,250)  (8,485) (423,480) 

   At December 31, 2019 4,416,909 271,501  5,222,578  9,910,988 

     
Carrying amount:     
   At January 1, 2018 2,077,064 9,132 2,124,468 4,210,664 

     
   At December 31, 2018 3,803,230 568,938 2,741,773 7,113,941 

     
   At December 31, 2019 3,561,989 936,720 3,223,092 7,721,801 
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 
 Office space 

 $ 
 (Restated) 
Cost:  
  At January 1, 2018 4,525,286 
   Additions 5,612,890 
   Expired (460,628) 

   At December 31, 2018 9,677,548 
   Additions 262,209 
   Expired and early termination  (867,380) 

   At December 31, 2019 9,072,377 

  
Accumulated depreciation:  
   At January 1, 2018 1,815,514 
   Depreciation for the year 2,088,435 
   Expired (460,628) 

   At December 31, 2018 3,443,321 

   Depreciation for the year 3,207,154 
   Expired and early termination (733,316) 

   At December 31, 2019 5,917,159 

  

Carrying amount:  
   At January 1, 2018 2,709,772 

  
   At December 31, 2018 6,234,227 

  
   At December 31, 2019 3,155,218 

 
 
 Amount recognized in profit and loss 

  

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
  (Restated) 
   
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 3,207,154 2,088,435 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 19) 192,977 109,952 

Expenses relating to lease of low value assets 543,811 366,280 

 
 

At December 31, 2019, the total cash outflow for leases amounted to $3,405,269 (2018 : $1,956,937). 
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16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 December 

31, 2019 
December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
Trade    
    
Subsidiaries (Note 13) 7,212,870 10,849,258 1,022,644 
Related companies (Note 5) 675,633 533,777 - 
Contract liabilities 180,208 90,104 417,600 

 8,068,711 11,473,139 1,440,244 
    
Non-trade    
    
Outside parties 7,914,404 5,839,224 4,879,647 
Subsidiaries (Note 13) 5,453 15,196 4,635 

Related companies (Note 5) 10,057 18,436 - 

 7,929,914 5,872,856 4,884,282 
    

 15,998,625 17,345,995 6,324,526 

 
 
 The credit period on payables is 30 to 60 days (December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2018 : 30 to 60 

days). No interest is charged on the outstanding balance. 
 
 The amounts due to subsidiaries and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 

demand. 
 
 
17 PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST 

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
   
At beginning of year 1,090,000 500,000 
Additions - 590,000 
Utilised (46,200) - 

Reversal (19,800) - 

At end of year 1,024,000 1,090,000 

 
 

The provision is made based on management’s best estimate for the reinstatement cost for its leasehold 
improvements, taking into account quotes received from contractors. The provision is recognised as 
addition to leasehold improvements (Note 14) and is depreciated over its estimated useful lives. 
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18 BANK LOAN 

 
December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
Secured 
    
Bank loan 34,421,513 30,547,922 - 
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months    
           (shown under current liabilities) (34,421,513) (6,373,589) - 

Amount due for settlement after 12 months - 24,174,333 - 

 
 

On September 18, 2018, the Company entered into a refinancing facility with a financial institution 
lender and drew down a loan with principal amount of $30.4 million. The facility bears an interest rate 
of 3% over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial institution lender (as determined by the 
financial institution lender). The bank loan is denominated in Singapore dollars with 20 equal quarterly 
repayment that commenced on January 17, 2019 and will mature on October 17, 2023. During the 
year ended December 31, 2019, the Company has made repayments of $6.0 million.  

 
On April 29, 2019, the Company entered into a revised credit facility with the financial institution lender 
to provide for borrowings in an aggregate amount of $56.5 million and includes a $7.6 million interest 
rate derivatives facility, a $20.0 million advance facility, a $27.4 million refinancing facility and a 
$1.5 million banker’s guarantee. This credit facility was amended on October 16, 2019, to, among 
other things, provide for a $5.0 million foreign exchange facility and reduce the $7.6 million interest 
rate derivatives facility to $3.5 million. 

 
On October 16, 2019, the Company drew down a loan of $10.0 million from the advance facility. The 
facility bears an interest rate of 1.25% per annum over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial 
institution lender. The loan is repayable on demand. 

 
 The bank loans are secured by: 
 

a) Personal guarantee from a director; 
b) Guarantee from holding company; 
c) Charge over the Company’s pledged bank deposits; 
d) Charge over shares of a subsidiary; 
e) Deed of subordination; and 
f) Fixed and floating charge over all present and future assets by way of debenture. 
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 The bank loans contain covenants which require the following be maintained: 
 

• the Company’s tangible net worth of not less than $16 million; 
 

• a ratio of the Company’s total indebtedness to tangible net worth of not more than 1.5 times; 
 
• the Company’s consolidated tangible net worth of not less than $35 million; 
 
• a ratio of the Company’s consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated tangible net worth of 

not more than 1.5 times; 

 
• the holding company’s consolidated debt service coverage ratio of not less than 3 times; and 
 
• the Company shall not declare dividends in excess of 50% of its net profit after tax through the 

tenure facilities. 
 

During the financial year, the Company distributed dividends in excess of 50% of its net profit after 

tax, which caused a technical breach of one of the covenants for the bank loan facility. The Company 
has obtained a written waiver of this breach from the bank subsequent to the end of the financial year. 
As a result of the breach and the written waiver being obtained after financial year end, the Company 
does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the loan for at least twelve months 
after financial year end and therefore, the Company classified the total bank loan amounting to $34.4 
million as current. 

 

 
 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
 
 The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities,  

including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for 
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cash flows 

as cash flows from financing activities. 
 

  
January 1, 

2019 
Financing 

cash flows (i) 
Other 

changes (ii) 
December 31, 

2019 

  $ $ $ $ 

      

 Lease liabilities 6,509,719 (3,405,269) 299,729 3,404,179 

 Bank loan 30,547,922 2,420,072 1,453,519 34,421,513 

 
 

  
January 1, 

2018 
Financing 

cash flows (i) 
Other 

changes (ii) 
December 31, 

2018 

  $ $ $ $ 

      

 Lease liabilities 2,743,813 (1,956,937) 5,722,843 6,509,719 

 Bank loan - 30,400,000 147,922 30,547,922 

 
 

(i) The cash flows make up the net proceeds from borrowings and repayment of lease liabilities in 
the statement of cash flows. 

 
(ii) Other changes include interest accruals, deferred charges, acquisition of right-of-use and lease 

liabilities, and gain on early termination of right-of-use assets. 
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19 LEASE LIABILITIES 

 
December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
  (Restated) (Restated) 
Minimum lease payments    
    
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 
   (shown under current liabilities) 1,828,714 3,105,539 1,354,598 

Amounts due for settlement after 12 months  
   and not later  than 5 years 1,575,465 3,404,180 1,389,215 

 3,404,179 6,509,719 2,743,813 

 
 

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.  
 
 
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

 December 
31, 2019 

December 
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 $ $ $ 
  (Restated) (Restated) 
    
Deferred tax liabilities 233,000 362,166 308,213 

 
 
 The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Company and movement thereon 

during the year: 
 

Provisions 

Accelerated 
tax 

depreciation Others Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

     

At January 1, 2018 (restated)  (160,787)  475,000   (6,000)  308,213  

(Credit) Charge to profit or loss (Note 24)  (193,047)  247,000   -    53,953  

At December 31, 2018  (353,834)  722,000   (6,000)  362,166  

Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 24) 88,834 (224,000) 6,000 (129,166) 

At December 31, 2019 (265,000) 498,000 - 233,000 
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21 SHARE CAPITAL 
 December  

31, 2019 

December  
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

December  
31, 2019 

December  
31, 2018 

January  
1, 2018 

 Number of shares $ $ $ 
       
At beginning of year 800,700 2,001,750 2,001,750 2,001,7490 2,001,750 2,001,750 
Share reduction - (1,201,050) - - (1) - 

At end of year 800,700 800,700 2,001,750 2,001,7499 2,001,749 2,001,750 

       

 

 Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and a right to dividends 
as and when declared by the Company. 

 
 In 2018, there was a $1 reduction in the issued and paid-up capital through cancellation of 1,201,050 

ordinary shares of the Company held by a shareholder. 
 

 
22 REVENUE 

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
Over time   
   

Customer care 44,659,138 44,486,110 
Sales and marketing 39,421,362 23,380,119 
Content monitoring and moderation 61,526,374 14,361,203 
Workspace and payroll outsourcing 2,330,880 2,519,683 

 147,937,754 84,747,115 
   

At a point in time   
   
Project setup and system configuration fees 1,260,413 395,782 
Other services - 47,639 

 1,260,413 443,421 

   

 149,198,167 85,190,536 

 
 

23 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 
 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
   
Interest income 1,405,069 354,582 

Dividend income (Note 5) 14,687,268 2,552,382 
Government grant 542,858 400,322 
Others 2,395,309 1,036,483 

 19,030,504 4,343,769 
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 
 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
  (Restated) 
Income tax:   
   - Current year 4,722,345 2,532,200 
   - Under (Over) provision of prior years 57,790 (53,840) 

 4,780,135 2,478,360 

Deferred tax:  
   - Current year (Note 20) (129,166) 53,953 
  
Foreign withholding tax 21,418 2,461 

 4,672,387 2,534,774 

 
 
 The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 

Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2018 : 17%) to profit before income tax as a result of the following 

differences: 
 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
  (Restated) 
   
Profit before income tax 39,756,679 17,670,119 

  
Tax at the domestic income tax rate 6,758,635 3,003,920 
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 

   in determining taxable profit 444,027 128,792 
Under (Over) provision in prior years 57,790 (53,840) 
Tax exempt income and tax rebates (2,529,329) (530,109) 
Foreign withholding tax 21,418 2,461 
Others (80,154) (16,450) 

Tax expense for the year 4,672,387 2,534,774 
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25 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 
 
 Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: 

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
   
Directors’ remuneration 2,224,000 699,652 

 
 

Employee benefits expense (including director’s remuneration):   

   
Defined contribution plan 3,134,409 2,518,822 
Other short-term benefits 57,651,064 39,553,612 

Total employee benefits expense 60,785,473 42,072,434 

   
   
Utilities expense # 562,588 360,700 
Foreign exchange loss - net # 260,279 32,294 

Depreciation expense 7,871,875 4,251,131 

   
 
 #    These are included in other operating expenses. 

 
 
26 COMMITMENTS 
 
 Lease commitments for leases of low-value assets are as follows: 
 

 2019 2018 

 $ $ 
   
Payable within one year 565,088 386,037 
Payable in the second to fifth year inclusive 479,076 536,276 

 1,044,164 922,313 

 
 

27 DIVIDENDS 
 
 During the financial year ended December 31, 2019, the Company declared and paid interim tax-exempt 

dividends of $48.08 per ordinary share (2018 : $1.50 per ordinary share) totalling $38,500,000 
(2018 : $3,002,625) in respect of the financial year ended December 31, 2019 (2018 : December 31, 
2018). 
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28 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
 In December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was detected in Wuhan, 

China and has since spread to other parts of the world, including Singapore where the Company’s office 

and operations are located.  The Company considers the outbreak to be a non-adjusting event for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2019. Although it is not possible to reliably estimate the length or 
severity of this outbreak and hence its financial impact, the effects of COVID-19 has and may continue 
to affect certain of our customers businesses. This may in turn result in significant reduction in our 
customers’ projects ultimately resulting in a loss of sales, profits and other material adverse effects. 
Notwithstanding this, management has assessed that the Company is still able to maintain sufficient 

liquidity to enable the Company to continue as a going concern for at least the next 12 months from 
the end of the reporting period. 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
 
 
 
The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2020. 

 
In the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements of the Company as set out on 
pages 7 to 41 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at  
December 31, 2020 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the 
financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that 
the Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 

 
 
1 DIRECTORS 

 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are: 
 
Laurent Bernard Marie Junique 

Tay Hui Kiang     (Appointed on March 25, 2021) 
 
 

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS 
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 
Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 

arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of 
the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
 

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the 
share capital of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ 
shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as 
follows: 

  Shareholdings registered in 
name of director 

   

 Name of director and companies 
in which interests are held 

At beginning 
of year 

At end 
of year 

    

 Laurent Bernard Marie Junique   

    
 Ultimate holding company   
    
 TDCX (KY) Pte. Ltd.   
 (Ordinary shares) - 1 
    

    
 Immediate holding company   
    
 TDCX Holdings Pte. Ltd.   
 (Ordinary shares) 249,999 - 

 

 
By virtue of section 7 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, Laurent Bernard Marie Junique is 
deemed to have an interest in all the related corporations of the Company. 
  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 

2 
 
 

 

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
 
 
 
  Shareholdings registered 

in name of director 

   

 Name of director and companies 
in which interests are held 

At beginning 
of year 

At end 
of year 

    

 Lee Mui Joo Loretta   

  
Immediate holding company 
 
TDCX Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

  

 (Ordinary shares) 1 - 

 
 

4 SHARE OPTIONS 
 
(a) Options to take up unissued shares 

 
During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company were granted. 

 
 

(b) Options exercised 

 
During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company issued by virtue of the exercise 
of an option to take up unissued shares. 
 

 
(c) Unissued shares under option 

 
At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under option. 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 

 

 

 

5 AUDITORS 

 

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

July 9, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TDCX (SG) Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”), which comprise the
statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 7 to 41.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2020 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in
the Directors’ Statement set out on pages 1 to 3.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss
from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability
of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.



6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company incorporated
in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

July 9, 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 2020 
 
 
 Note 2020 2019 

  $ $ 

ASSETS    

    

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 7 14,645,628 8,267,548  

Fixed deposits 8 644,813 640,000  

Trade receivables 10 9,354,330 20,989,329 

Contract assets 11 26,896,965 8,451,715 

Other receivables 12 13,566,964 32,273,514 

Total current assets  65,108,700 70,622,106 

    

Non-current assets    

Pledged deposits 9 1,900,000 1,900,000 

Other receivables 12 30,715,083 881,783 

Subsidiaries 13 842,386 842,386 

Plant and equipment 14 3,743,484 7,721,801 

Right-of-use assets 15 2,725,389 3,155,218 

Total non-current assets  39,926,342 14,501,188 

    

Total assets  105,035,042 85,123,294 

    

    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

    

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 16 21,275,465 15,998,625 

Provision for reinstatement cost 17 1,024,000 - 

Bank loans 18 24,170,314 34,421,513 

Lease liabilities 19 2,880,187 1,828,714 

Income tax payable  9,197,581 4,929,488 

Total current liabilities  58,547,547 57,178,340 

    

Non-current liabilities    

Provision for reinstatement cost 17 - 1,024,000 

Bank loans 18 16,136,436 - 

Lease liabilities 19 - 1,575,465 

Deferred tax liabilities 20 18,683 233,000 

Total non-current liabilities  16,155,119 2,832,465 

    

Capital and reserves    

Share capital 21 2,001,749 2,001,749 

Retained earnings  28,330,627 23,110,740 

Total equity  30,332,376 25,112,489 

    

Total liabilities and equity  105,035,042 85,123,294 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

 Note 2020 2019 

  $ $ 

    

Revenue 22 200,124,100 149,198,167 

    

Other operating income 23 43,332,086 19,030,504 

    

Employee benefits expense  (68,704,006) (60,785,473) 

    

Sub-contracting costs  (76,040,604) (52,733,169) 

    

Depreciation expense  (7,208,664) (7,871,875) 

    

Rental and maintenance expenses  (1,757,873) (1,667,029) 

    

Recruitment expense  (1,218,101) (672,491) 

    

Transport and travelling expenses  (274,246) (390,358) 

    

Telecommunication and technology expense  (884,772) (837,304) 

    

Other operating expenses  (2,043,807) (1,922,165) 

    

Finance costs  (1,438,795) (1,592,128) 

    

Profit before income tax  83,885,318 39,756,679 

    

Income tax expense 24 (8,165,431) (4,672,387) 

    

Profit for the year, representing total    

   comprehensive income for the year 25 75,719,887 35,084,292 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
 
 
  Share Retained  

 Note capital earnings Total 

  $ $ $ 
     

Balance at January 1, 2019  2,001,749 26,526,448 28,528,197 

     

Profit for the year, representing total     

   comprehensive income for the year  - 35,084,292 35,084,292 

     

Transaction with owners,     

   recognised directly in equity:     

   Dividends 27 - (38,500,000) (38,500,000) 

     

Balance at December 31, 2019  2,001,749 23,110,740 25,112,489 

     

Profit for the year, representing total  - 75,719,887 75,719,887 

   comprehensive income for the year     

     

Transaction with owners,     

   recognised directly in equity:     

   Dividends 27 - (70,500,000) (70,500,000) 

     

Balance at December 31, 2020  2,001,749 28,330,627 30,332,376 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

Operating activities   

 Profit before income tax 83,885,318 39,756,679 

 Adjustments for:   

  Depreciation expense 7,208,664 7,871,875 

   Gain on early termination of right-of-use assets - (21,393) 

   Loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries 13,252 44,942 

  Interest expense 1,438,795 1,592,128 

  Interest income (820,286) (1,405,069) 

  Dividend income (Note A) (33,773,225) (14,687,268) 

  Bank facility fee 54,368 54,368 

  Loss on disposal and write-off of plant and equipment - 67 

 Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 58,006,886 33,206,329 

   

  Trade receivables 11,634,999 (1,767,724) 

  Contract assets (18,445,250) 1,799,708 

  Other receivables (1,258,002)  7,554,771  

  Trade and other payables 4,844,415  (1,368,788) 

 Cash generated from operations 54,783,048 39,424,296 

   

 Interest received 815,473  1,405,069  

 Income tax paid (3,679,230)  (2,385,286) 

Net cash from operating activities 51,919,291 38,444,079 

   

Investing activities   

 Purchase of plant and equipment  (207,373)  (5,272,648) 

 Reinstatement paid - (66,000) 

 Increase in fixed deposits -  (640,000) 

 Dividend income received (Note A) 23,891,225  14,523,019  

Net cash from investing activities 23,683,852 8,544,371 

   

Financing activities   

 Dividends paid (70,500,000) (38,500,000) 

 Proceeds from loans and borrowings 12,000,000  10,000,000 

 Payment of bank loans (6,080,000)  (6,080,000) 

 Repayment of lease liabilities (3,260,930)  (3,405,269) 

 Interest paid (1,384,133) (1,384,928) 

 Bank facility fee paid - (115,000) 

Net cash used in financing activities (69,225,063) (39,485,197) 

   

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,378,080 7,503,253 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,267,548 764,295 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7) 14,645,628 8,267,548 

 
 
Note A: During the year, dividend income of $Nil (2019 : $164,249) from a subsidiary was capitalized 

as additional share capital investment in the subsidiary. 



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2020 
 
 
 

11 
 
 

 

1 GENERAL 

 
The Company (Registration No. 199507681R) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal  
place of business and registered office at 750D Chai Chee Road, #06-01/06 ESR Bizpark @ Chai Chee, 
Singapore 469004. The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars. 
 
The principal activities of the Company are the provision of outsourced contact services for sales and 

marketing, customer care and content monitoring. 
 
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on July 9, 2021. 
 
 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical 
cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with 
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”). 
 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of 
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which 
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 

date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is 
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 116 Leases, 
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in 
use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assets. 
 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
 
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date; 
 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
 
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On January 1, 2020, the Company adopted all the 
new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) and amendments to FRS that are 

relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS 
does not result in changes to the Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the 
disclosures or on the amounts reported for the current or prior years except as discussed below. 
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Impact of the initial application of Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions amendment to FRS 116 
 
In May 2020, the ASC issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to FRS 116) that 
provides practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence 
of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to FRS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee 
to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that 
makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related 

rent concession the same way it would account for the change applying FRS 116 if the change were 
not a lease modification.  
 
The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 
and only if all of the following conditions are met: 
 
a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially 

the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 
 
b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021 

(a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before  
June 30, 2021 and increased lease payments that extend beyond June 30, 2021); and 

 
c) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. 

 
In the current financial year, the Company has applied the amendment to FRS 116 in advance of its 
effective date. 
 
 
Impact on accounting for changes in lease payments applying the exemption 

 

The Company has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent concessions that meet the 
conditions in FRS 116:46B, and has not restated prior period figures.  
 
The Company has benefited from an average 2 months waiver of lease payments on leased office 
space. The waiver of lease payments of S$0.2 million has been accounted for as a negative variable 
lease payment in profit or loss. The Company has derecognized the part of the lease liability that  

has been extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments, consistent with the requirements of  
FRS 109:3.3.1. 
 
 
Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material  

 

The Company has adopted the amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 8 for the first time in the current year. 
The amendments make the definition of material in FRS 1 easier to understand and are not intended 
to alter the underlying concept of materiality in FRS Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring’ material 
information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition.  
 
The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence’ to ‘could 

reasonably be expected to influence’. 
 
The definition of material in FRS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in 
FRS 1. In addition, the ASC amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a 
definition of ‘material’ or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure consistency. 
 
  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2020 
 
 
 

13 
 
 

 

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and 

amendments to FRS that are relevant to the Company were issued but not yet effective: 
 
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 
 
• Amendments to FRS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

• Amendments to FRS 103 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 

• Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use 

• Annual improvements to FRSs 2018-2020 

 
Management anticipates that the adoption of the above/other FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to 
FRS in future periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements in the period of their 
initial adoption. 
 
 
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its 

subsidiaries have not been prepared as the Company itself is a wholly-owned subsidiary of another 
company. Publicly available consolidated financial statements are prepared by the immediate holding 
company, TDCX Holdings Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Singapore, whose registered address is 750D Chai 
Chee Road, #06-01/06 ESR Bizpark @ Chai Chee, Singapore 469004. 
 
 

SUBSIDIARIES - Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the 
Company: 
 
• Has power over the investee; 

• Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

• Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

 
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 
 
Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost, less any impairment in net recoverable value that has 
been recognised in profit or loss. 
 

 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement 
of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. 
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Financial assets 

 
Classification of financial assets 
 
Debt instruments mainly comprise cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables which 
meet the following conditions and are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 
 

•  The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 
•  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
 

Amortised cost and effective interest method 

 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and 
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 
 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts  
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the 
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying 
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 
 
The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for 
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised 
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 
 
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured 
subsequently at amortised cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 

 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand, demand deposits 
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) trade and other 
receivables and contract asset. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date 

to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. 
 
The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets. The expected 
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the 
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. 
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For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the 
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures 
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment 
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk 
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being  
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

 
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime 
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within  
12 months after the reporting date. 
 
 

Significant increase in credit risk 

 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of 
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 

information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered 
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate and impact of 
COVID-19, as well as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic 
information that relate to the Company’s core operations. 
 
The Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has 
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 
 
The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting 
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a 
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations 

in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, 
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 
 
The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria 
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 
 

 
Definition of default 

 
The Company considers for internal credit risk management purposes and based on historical 
experience, that an event of default to have occurred when there is information obtained from internal 
or external sources that indicates the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company. 

 
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial 
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information 
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. 
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Credit-impaired financial assets 

 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. These events include evidence that 
there is significant financial difficulty of the debtors or it is becoming probable that the debtor will 
enter bankruptcy. 
 

 
Write-off policy 

 
The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is 
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty 
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets  
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, 

taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
 
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

 
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of 

the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented 
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. 
 
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 

the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 
If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the 
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount 
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date. 
 

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 
 
 
Derecognition of financial assets 
 
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 

borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or 
loss. 
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

 
Classification as debt or equity 
 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

 
 
Equity instruments 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs. 

 
 
Trade and other payables 
 
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense 
recognised on an effective yield basis, except for short-term payables when the recognition of interest 
would be immaterial. 
 
 
Bank loans 
 
Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Interest expense calculated using the effective 
interest method is recognised over the term of the borrowing in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see below). 
 
 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. 
 
 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method, on the following bases: 

  Years 

   
Leasehold improvements - Shorter of the useful lives or the lease terms 

(ranging from 2 to 6 years) 
Furniture and fittings - 5 
Office equipment and software - 3 to 5 
 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 
 
The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of a plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in 
profit or loss. 
 
 

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews 
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is 

not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. 
 
 
PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

 
When some or all other economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
 
 

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract 
with a customer and recognized as and when control of a service is transferred to a customer. 
 
Revenues are recognized upon the application of the following steps: 
 
1. Identification of the contract or contracts with a customer; 

2. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract; 

3. Determination of the transaction price; 

4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 

5. Recognition of revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. 
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The Company enters into master services agreements and statements of work which set out the details 

of the work streams for each campaign to be provided to the customers. The work streams are 
generally capable of being distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations. Based on 
the transaction price as set up in the agreement for each performance obligation, the Company will 
invoice to the customers on a monthly basis as each performance obligation is satisfied after agreeing 
with the customers on any fee adjustments based on whether the Company meets (or the failure to 
meet) certain key performance indicators (where applicable) during that month. The Company 

recognizes the revenue using the right to invoice practical expedient as the output method because 
the amount it has the right to invoice corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the 
Company’s performance completed to date, and any variable consideration would be resolved at the 
point of billing. 
 
A contract asset is recorded when revenue is recognized prior to invoicing and a contract liability is 
recorded when the Company invoices the customers prior to satisfying the performance obligations. 

The contracts do not include a significant financing component as the normal credit term is between 
30 to 90 days. 
 
Revenue recognized from contracts with customers is disaggregated into categories that depict how 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. 
 
• Omnichannel Customer Experience (“CX”) solutions - The Company provides omnichannel CX 

solutions by providing information about its clients, products and services to their customers. 
The objective is to help its clients manage their relationships with their customers. This includes 
technical support for software, consumer electronic devices and telemarketing campaigns. 
Customer contact occurs through phone call, online chat, SMS, email and a variety of other 
channels and are typically on general enquiries or after-sales service issue resolution. Each 
service is viewed as one performance obligation and revenue is recognized over time by using 

the output method when the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured 
by the value of the service performed to date. 

 
• Sales and digital marketing - The Company provides sales and marketing services through 

contacts made by the Company’s sales and digital marketing agents with the objective to 
promote and sell the products of its customers. This primarily involves helping the digital 
advertising platform clients to attract more advertisers and grow their Internet and social media 

advertising businesses. Each scope of service is viewed as one performance obligation and 
revenue is recognized over time by using the output method when the performance obligation 
is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the service performed to date. 

 
• Content monitoring and moderation - The Company provides content monitoring and moderation 

services to a customer by way of content moderating, identification review, authenticity and 
access flows and other related services. This is performed through review of social media 

platforms for content that violates terms of service or is illegal pursuant to the specifications and 
guidelines provided by the client. Revenue is recognized over time by using the output method 
when the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the 
service performed to date. 

 
• Workspace and payroll services - The Company provides workspace and payroll services through 

provision of fully equipped and serviced workstations and provision of payroll and human 
resource administration services to some of its customers. Revenue is recognized over time 
when the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the 
service performed to date. 

 
Value of the service performed is determined based on the hours incurred times a fixed rate as 
stipulated in the contract. Any variabilities in the transaction price are resolved before each billing. 
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The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient provided in FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts 

with Customers, to recognize revenue in the amount to which it has the right to invoice and has not 
disclosed the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that 
are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the end of the reporting period. 
 
The Company incurred certain costs such as personnel and travel costs, hiring and training employees 
and capital expenditures incurred in infrastructure, renovation and leases of office space which are 

incidental to its contracts with the customers. FRS 115 requires an entity to recognize an asset from 
the costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer if the costs are not within the scope of another 
FRS Standard, and only if those costs meet all the following criteria: 
 
• the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Company can 

specifically identify; 
 

• the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying 
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and 

 
• the costs are expected to be recovered. 
 
The Company recognized costs as expenses as they are incurred when they relate to personnel and 
travelling, hiring and training employees when they do not meet the criteria above. In cases where 

the start-up costs to fulfil a contract includes capital expenditures in infrastructure, renovation and 
leases of offices space, those costs are recorded based on the guidance included in FRS 16 Property 

Plant and Equipment and FRS 116 Leases. 

 
 
Interest income 

 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable. 
 
 
GOVERNMENT GRANTS - Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance 
that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. 

 
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs 
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Grants that are receivable as 
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial 
support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in income or expenditure in the 
period in which they become receivable. 
 

 
LEASES - The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract 
on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for 
short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value 

assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For 
these leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 

the commencement date. The lease payment shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the 
incremental borrowing rate. The Company’s incremental borrowing rate is determined based on the 
interest rate of the Company’s bank loans if the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value of the 
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. 

 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 
• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives 

receivable; 
 
• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;  

 
• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
 
• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease. 
 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line (current and non-current) in the statement of financial 
position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on 
the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect 
the lease payments made. 

 
The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) whenever: 
 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting 

in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting 
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change 
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). 

 
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, 

in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by 
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the 
modification. 

 
The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,  
lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and 

any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 
 
Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a lease improvement 
asset and restore the underlying lease assets to their original condition required by the terms and 
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized to the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use 
asset. 
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of contracted lease term and useful life of 

the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use 
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of the lease. 
 
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 

 
The Company applies FRS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for 
any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Plant and Equipment’ policy. 
 
 
BORROWING COSTS - All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they 
are incurred. 

 
 
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged 
as an expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. 
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident 
Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Company’s obligations under 
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

 
 
EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 
 

 
INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items 
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that 
are not taxable or tax deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is 
considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are 
measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based 
on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect 
of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice. 

 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities 
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary 

differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities 
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, a deferred 
tax liability is not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. 
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax 
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests 
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against 
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting period. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or 
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net 
basis. 
 
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business 
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination. 
 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The financial statements of the Company 
are measured and presented in Singapore dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (its functional currency). 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the 
Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. At the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences 
arising on the settlement of monetary items and on retranslation of monetary items are included in 
profit or loss for the period. 
 
 

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 
In applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is required 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based 
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
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Critical judgements in applying the entity accounting policies 

 
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management did not make any material judgements 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements apart from those 
involving estimates as discussed below. 
 
 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below: 
 
(a) Expected credit loss for trade receivables and contract assets 

 
The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix based on 
the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the 
debtors, general economic conditions. The carrying amount of the trade receivables and contract 
assets at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial 
statements. 
 

The management has assessed that, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade 
receivables past due, based on historical experience in the collection of receivables and ECL 
assessment. These receivables are mainly arising from customers that have a good credit record 
with the Company. 
 
 

(b) Impairment in value of investment in subsidiaries 
 
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. 
The Company follows the guidance of FRS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether its 
investments in subsidiaries are impaired. This determination requires significant judgement. In 
making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the market and economic 
environment in which the subsidiaries operate, economic performance of these entities, the 

duration and extent to which the cost of investments in these entities exceed their net tangible 
assets values and fair value of investments less cost to sell. 
 
During the year, the management has assessed the carrying value of the Company’s investment 
in subsidiaries by considering the financial performance and net tangible assets of the respective 
subsidiaries and as of December 31, 2020, the allowance for impairment in subsidiaries 
amounted to $249,999 (2019 : $891,867). 

 
If the performance of the respective subsidiaries and/or market conditions were to deteriorate 
which will affect the Company’s investments in subsidiaries, additional impairment may be 
required. The carrying amount at the investment in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 13. 
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 
The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period: 
 

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

 Financial assets   
 Amortised cost  69,689,840 64,542,902 

    

    
 Financial liabilities   
 Amortised cost 60,421,500 50,239,930 
 Lease liabilities 2,880,187 3,404,179 

 
 
(i) Credit risk management 

 
The Company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring 

its credit risk. The Company only grants credit to creditworthy counterparties, based on the 
credit evaluation process by management. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their 
obligations as the end of financial year in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is 
the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the statement of financial position. 
 

The Company’s cash are placed with reputable financial institutions. 
 
The Company has concentration of credit risk as 67% (2019 : 85%) of its trade receivables are 
due from two customers (2019 : two customers). Allowances for potential credit losses are made 
when necessary. Further details of credit risks on trade receivables are disclosed in Note 10. 
 
The Company develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures according 

to their degree of risk of default. The Company uses its own trading records to rate its major 
customers and other debtors. 
 
The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 
 
Category 
 

Description 
 

Basis for recognising 
expected credit losses 
(ECL) 
 

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 
have any past-due amounts. 
 

12-month ECL 

Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due or there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 
 

Lifetime ECL -  
not credit-impaired 

In default Amount is more than 90 days past due or there is 
evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired. 
 

Lifetime ECL -  
credit-impaired 

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and the Company has no realistic 

prospect of recovery. 
 

Amount is written off 
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The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets and contract assets 

as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades: 
 

  

Note 

Internal 
credit 
rating 

12-month or 
lifetime ECL 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

Loss 
allowance 

Net carrying 
amount 

     $ $ $ 

 2020       

        

 Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 
(Simplified approach) 

9,354,330 - 9,354,330 

        

 Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 
(Simplified approach) 

26,896,965 - 26,896,965 

        

 Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 43,880,761 (13,252) 43,867,509 

      (13,252)  

        

        

 2019       

        

 Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 
(Simplified approach) 

20,989,329 - 20,989,329 

        

 Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 
(Simplified approach) 

8,451,715 - 8,451,715 

        

 Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 36,538,531 (3,792,506) 32,746,025 

      (3,792,506)  

 
 
(a) The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision 

matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status 
of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future 
economic conditions. 

 
Further details of credit risk on trade receivables and other receivables are disclosed in 
Notes 10 and 12 respectively. 

 
 

(ii) Interest rate risk management 
 
Interest rate risk arises from the potential changes in interest rates that may have an adverse 
effect on the Company in the current reporting period and future years. 
 

As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s primary interest rate relates to interest-bearing bank 
loan. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank loan are disclosed in Note 18 of the 
financial statements. 
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Interest rate sensitivity 

 
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates 
for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period and the 
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant 
throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis 
point increase or decrease is used and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably 

possible change in interest rates. 
 
As at December 31, 2020, it is estimated that a 50 basis point change in interest rates will affect 
the Company’s profit before tax by $176,481 (2019 : $171,600). 
 
 

(iii) Foreign currency risk management 

 
The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuations in United States dollars and Malaysia ringgit with 
its functional currency. 
 
At the end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of significant monetary assets and monetary 
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are as follows: 
 

  Assets Liabilities 

  2020 2019 2020 2019 

  $ $ $ $ 
      
 United States dollar 29,384,442 5,742,573 12,443,790 7,102,515 
 Malaysia ringgit 9,882,000 - 129,388 587,303 

 

 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

 

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% strengthening/weakening in the functional 
currency against the relevant foreign currencies. If the Singapore dollar strengthens/weakens 
by 5% against the relevant foreign currencies, profit or loss will increase/(decrease) by: 
 

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 
    
 United States dollar 847,033 (67,997) 
 Malaysia ringgit 487,631 (29,365) 

 
 
The sensitivity rate of 5% is the change in foreign exchange rate that management deems 
reasonably possible which will affect outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items 
at period end. 
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(iv) Liquidity risk management 

 
Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The Company maintains 
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and internally generated cash flows to finance its operations. 
The Company mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining some standby credit lines available. 
 
 

Liquidity and interest risk analyses 

 
Financial liabilities 
 
The following table shows cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 
the Company can be required to pay. The adjustments in the table represent estimated interest 
for the future period up to the maturity dates of the respective financial liabilities. 

 

  
Interest  

rate 

On demand  
or within  
1 year 

Within 2 to  
5 years Adjustments Total 

  % $ $ $ $ 

 2020      

       

 Non-interest bearing - 20,114,750 - - 20,114,750 

 
Lease liabilities  
   (fixed interest rate) 2.5% to 4.4% 2,937,691 - (57,504) 2,880,187 

 
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 2.5% 1,042,634 4,264,998 (297,015) 5,010,617 

 
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  1.6% to 3.0%  23,736,101 12,513,866 (953,834) 35,296,133 

       

       

 2019      

       

 Non-interest bearing - 15,818,417 - - 15,818,417 

 
Lease liabilities 
   (fixed interest rate) 2.4% to 4.1% 1,929,239 1,605,999 (131,059) 3,404,179 

 
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  3.0% to 4.7% 36,624,987 - (2,203,474) 34,421,513 

 
 
All financial assets as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are repayable on demand 

or due within one year from the end of the reporting period, and are non-interest bearing, except 
for pledged deposits and non-current other receivables as disclosed in Notes 9 and 12 respectively. 
 
 

(v) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position 
approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these 
financial instruments. The fair values of other classes of financial assets and liabilities are 
disclosed on the respective notes to the financial statements. 
  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2020 
 
 
 

29 
 
 

 

Capital risk management policies and objectives 

 
Management reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Company will be able to 
continue as a going concern. The capital structure comprises only issued capital and retained 
earnings. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the previous financial year. 
 
 

5 HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANIES 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TDCX Holdings Pte Ltd, incorporated in Singapore.  
Its intermediate holding company is TDCX (KY) Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Cayman Islands. With the 
restructuring exercise on March 23, 2021, TDCX Inc. incorporated in Cayman Islands became the 
company’s ultimate holding company. The director of the company is the ultimate controlling party of 
TDCX Inc. and held his shareholdings in TDCX Inc. through Transformative Investments Pte Ltd.  

 
Related companies refer to members of the immediate holding company’s group of companies. 
 
Some of the Company’s transactions and arrangements are between members of the holding company 
and the effect of these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial 
statements. The intercompany balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless 
otherwise stated. 

 
Significant transactions with holding company and related companies:  
 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

Holding company   

   

Interest income 814,740 1,300,327 

Recharge of expenses 66,000 - 

Other operating expenses (303,000) - 

   

   

Subsidiaries   

   

Sub-contracting costs (49,521,411) (48,752,664) 

Interest income - 79,261 

Dividend income 33,773,225 14,687,268 

Recovery of reimbursement expenses 1,994,381 2,283,386 

   

   

Related companies   

   

Sub-contracting costs (26,519,193) (3,980,505) 
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6 RELATED PARTIES 

 
Compensation of directors and key management personnel 

 
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows: 
 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Short-term benefits 2,314,626 3,933,667 

Post-employment benefits 45,900 52,020 

 2,360,526 3,985,687 

 
 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Cash on hand 509 382 

Cash at bank 14,645,119 8,267,166 

 14,645,628 8,267,548 

 
 

8 FIXED DEPOSITS 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Fixed deposits 644,813 640,000 

 
 
Fixed deposits bear interest at an effective interest rate of 0.75% (2019 : 0.75%) per annum and for 
tenure of 365 days. 

 
 

9 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Pledged deposits 1,900,000 1,900,000 

 
 
The deposits were pledged to a financial institution for securing bank loans (Note 18).  
 

 
10 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Outside parties 9,354,330 20,989,329 

 
 

The credit period on rendering of service to outside parties is 30 to 45 days (2019 : 30 to 60 days). 
No interest is charge on the outstanding trade receivables. 
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Trade receivable amounting to $428,342 (2019 : $1,512,273) are pledged to a guarantor  

(2019 : two guarantors) for a performance guarantee issued in favour of a customer. 
 
Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past 
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, and where relevant, general economic conditions of the 

industry in which the debtors operate. 
 
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the 
current reporting period. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the management has assessed that, based on historical 
and default experience in the collection of receivables and ECL model, the receivables are assessed to 

have low credit risk and the expected credit loss on trade receivables is assessed to be insignificant. 
 
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers based on 
the Company’s provision matrix. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not show 
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance 
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Company’s different customer base. 
 

   Trade receivables - days past due 

   Current 
1 - 30 
days 

31 - 60 
days 

61 - 90 
days 

> 90 
days Total 

   $ $ $ $ $ $ 

  2020       

         

  
Estimated total gross  
   carrying amount at default:       

         

  Outside parties 8,597,572 529,704 227,054 - - 9,354,330 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   8,597,572 529,704 227,054 - - 9,354,330 

         

         

  2019       

         

  
Estimated total gross 
   carrying amount at default:       

         

  Outside parties 18,400,152 738,728 1,630,576 - 219,873 20,989,329 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   18,400,152 738,728 1,630,576 - 219,873 20,989,329 

 

 
11 CONTRACT ASSETS 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Unbilled receivables 26,896,965 8,451,715 

 
 

Unbilled receivables are balances owed by the customers that arise from services performed.  
Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point 
at which it is invoiced to the customer. 
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Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount equal to 

lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the 
industry in which the customers operate in. None of the amounts due from customers at the end of 
the reporting period is past due and management considered the amount to have low credit risk. 
 
 

12 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Prepayments 414,538 409,272 

Deposits 1,329,989 1,273,381 

Holding company (Note 5) 30,527,186 30,675,577 

Related companies (Note 5) 435,223 130,746 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 10,595,760 4,456,206 

Grant receivable 722,440 - 

Others 270,163 2,621 

 44,295,299 36,947,803 
Less: Loss allowance for amounts due from  
            subsidiaries (13,252) (3,792,506) 

 44,282,047 33,155,297 

   

   

Analysed as:   

   Current 13,566,964 32,273,514 

   Non-current 30,715,083 881,783 

 44,282,047 33,155,297 

 
 
Non-current other receivables relate to refundable deposits for office tenancies and utilities that are 
non-interest bearing and are due for repayment in 2022 to 2023 (2019 : 2020 and 2022). The carrying 
amount approximates its fair value. 
 
The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 

The non-trade amount due from holding company relates to external loan borrowed and loaned to the 
holding company at the same borrowing terms as disclosed in Note 18. The balance is unsecured, 
bears interest calculated based on aggregate of margin of 3% and cost of funds of the financial 
institution lender and is repayable quarterly commencing on February 15, 2019 and will continue until 
November 15, 2023. In 2019, the non-trade amount due from holding company has been classified 
as current due to technical breach of a bank covenant by the Company to the financial institution 
lender. 

 
For purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables are considered to have low credit risk as 
they are not due for payment at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant 
increase in the risk of default on the receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose 
of impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal 
to 12-month expected credit losses (ECL). 
 

In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the historical default experience and the 
financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors that may be specific to the debtors in 
estimating the probability of default of each of these receivables, as well as the loss upon default in 
each case. Management has determined that those receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss 
other than what has been provided. 
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Movement in loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries: 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Balance at beginning of year 3,792,506 3,747,564 

Write-off during the year (3,792,506) - 

Charge to profit or loss 13,252 44,942 

Balance at end of year 13,252 3,792,506 

 
 

13 SUBSIDIARIES 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 1,092,385 1,734,253 

Less: Impairment loss (249,299) (891,867) 

 842,386 842,386 

 
 
Movement in allowance for impairment of subsidiaries: 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

 

Balance at beginning of year 891,867 891,867 

Write-off during the year (641,868) - 

Balance at end of year 249,999 891,867 

 
 
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: 

 
 

 

Name of subsidiaries 

Place of 
incorporation and 

operation 

Proportion of  

ownership interest 

Proportion of  

voting power held Principal activities 

   2020 2019 2020 2019  

   % % % %  

        

 TDCX (MY) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia 100 100 100 100 Provision of sales and marketing, 

customer care services and disaster 

recovery site. 

        

 Teledirect  
   Telecommerce  

   (Thailand)  

   Limited 

Thailand 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 Provision of sales acquisition, 
customer care services, and content 

monitoring. 

        

 PT Teledirect  

   Telecommerce * 

Indonesia - 100 - 100 Dormant. 

        

 Comparexpress  

   Insurance  

   Broker    

   (Thailand)  

   Limited 

Thailand 100 100 100 100 Provision of insurance brokerage 

service and online price comparison 

services. 

        

 Comparexpress 
   Pte Ltd 

Singapore 100 100 100 100 Provision of online price comparison 
portal service. 

 
 

* Disposed during the year. 
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
Leasehold 

improvements 

Furniture 
and 

fittings 

Office 
equipment 

and software Total 

  $ $ $ $ 

Cost:     

   At January 1, 2019 5,773,869 624,359  6,385,460  12,783,688 

   Additions 2,616,774 587,112  2,068,762  5,272,648 

   Written off (411,745) (3,250)  (8,552) (423,547) 

   At December 31, 2019 7,978,898 1,208,221  8,445,670  17,632,789 

   Additions 87,395 19,970 100,008 207,373 

   At December 31, 2020 8,066,293 1,228,191 8,545,678 17,840,162 

     

Accumulated depreciation:     

   At January 1, 2019 1,970,639 55,421  3,643,687  5,669,747 

   Depreciation for the year 2,858,015 219,330  1,587,376  4,664,721 

   Written off (411,745) (3,250)  (8,485) (423,480) 

   At December 31, 2019 4,416,909 271,501  5,222,578  9,910,988 

   Depreciation for the year 2,619,985 244,277 1,321,428 4,185,690 

   At December 31, 2020 7,036,894 515,778 6,544,006 14,096,678 

     

Carrying amount:     

   At December 31, 2019 3,561,989 936,720 3,223,092 7,721,801 

     

   At December 31, 2020 1,029,399 712,413 2,001,672 3,743,484 

     

 
 

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

 Office space 

 $ 

Cost:  

   At January 1, 2019 9,677,548 

   Additions 262,209 

   Expired and early termination (867,380) 

   At December 31, 2019 9,072,377 

   Additions 2,593,145 

   Expired and early termination  (3,723,579) 

   At December 31, 2020 7,941,943 

  

Accumulated depreciation:  

   At January 1, 2019 3,443,321 

   Depreciation for the year 3,207,154 

   Expired and early termination (733,316) 

   At December 31, 2019 5,917,159 

   Depreciation for the year 3,022,974 

   Expired and early termination (3,723,579) 

   At December 31, 2020 5,216,554 

  

Carrying amount:  

   At December 31, 2019 3,155,218 

  

   At December 31, 2020 2,725,389 
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Amount recognized in profit and loss 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 3,022,974 3,207,154 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 19) 143,793 192,977 

Expenses relating to lease of low value assets 671,134 543,811 

 
 

The Company leases office space with lease term ranging from 1 to 3 years. At December 31, 2020, 
the total cash outflow for leases amounted to $3,260,930 (2019 : $3,405,269). 
 
 

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

Trade   

   

Outside parties 486,700 - 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 5,806,299 7,212,870 

Related companies (Note 5) 6,766,701 675,633 

Contract liabilities - 180,208 

 13,059,700 8,068,711 

   

Non-trade   

   

Outside parties 7,052,604 7,914,404 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 2,446 5,453 

Related companies (Note 5) - 10,057 

Deferred grant income (Note 23) 1,160,715 - 

 8,215,765 7,929,914 

 21,275,465 15,998,625 

 
 
The credit period on payables is 30 to 60 days (2019 : 30 to 60 days). No interest is charged on the 
outstanding balance. 
 
The amounts due to subsidiaries and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand. 

 
 

17 PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

At beginning of year 1,024,000 1,090,000 

Utilised - (46,200) 

Reversal - (19,800) 

At end of year 1,024,000 1,024,000 
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  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

Analysed as:    

   Current  1,024,000 - 

   Non-current  - 1,024,000 

  1,024,000 1,024,000 

 
 

The provision is made based on management’s best estimate for the reinstatement cost for its 
leasehold improvements, taking into account recent quotes received from contractors and is carry at 
its approximate fair value as at end of reporting period. 
 
 

18 BANK LOANS 

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

Secured    

    

Bank loans  40,306,750 34,421,513 

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months    

           (shown under current liabilities)  (24,170,314) (34,421,513) 

Amount due for settlement after 12 months  16,136,436 - 

    

    

Interest payable (included in bank loans)  218,681 307,812 

 
 
On September 18, 2018, the Company entered into a refinancing facility with a financial institution 
lender and drew down a loan with principal amount of $30.4 million. The facility bears an interest rate 
of 3% over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial institution lender (as determined by the 
financial institution lender). The bank loan is denominated in Singapore dollar with 20 equal quarterly 

repayment commencing on January 17, 2019 and matures on October 17, 2023. During the year 
ended December 31, 2020, the Company has made repayments of $6.0 million (2019 : $6.0 million).  
 
On April 29, 2019, the Company entered into a revised credit facility with the financial institution 
lender to provide for borrowings in an aggregate amount of $56.5 million and includes a $7.6 million 
interest rate derivatives facility, a $20.0 million advance facility, a $27.4 million refinancing facility 
and a $1.5 million banker’s guarantee. This credit facility was amended on October 16, 2019, to, 

among other things, provide for a $5.0 million foreign exchange facility and reduce the $7.6 million 
interest rate derivatives facility to $3.5 million. 
 
On October 16, 2019 and March 18, 2020, the Company drew down loans of $10.0 million and $7.0 
million respectively from the advance facility. The facility bears an interest rate of 1.25% per annum 
over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial institution lender (as determined by the financial 

institution lender). The loan is repayable on demand. 
 
On April 30, 2020, the Company entered into a temporary bridging loan agreement with the same 
financial institution lender and subsequently on July 30, 2020, the Company drew down a principal 
amount of $5.0 million. The facility bears an interest rate of 2.5% per annum. The bank loan is 
denominate in Singapore dollar with 53 equal monthly repayments commencing on March 1, 2021 and 
matures on August 1, 2025. No repayment has been made during the year ended December 31, 2020. 

Bank loans approximate fair value as at end of reporting period. 
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The bank loans are secured by: 

 
a) Personal guarantee from a director; 

b) Guarantee from holding company; 

c) Charge over the Company’s pledged bank deposits; 

d) Charge over shares of the Company, certain subsidiaries and related companies; 

e) Deed of subordination; and 

f) Fixed and floating charge over all present and future assets by way of debenture. 

 
The bank loans contain covenants which require the following be maintained: 
 
• the Company’s tangible net worth of not less than $16 million; 
 
• a ratio of the Company’s total indebtedness to tangible net worth of not more than 1.5 times; 
 

• the holding company’s consolidated tangible net worth of not less than $42 million; 
 
• a ratio of the holding company’s consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated tangible net 

worth of not more than 1.5 times; 
 
• the holding company’s consolidated debt service coverage ratio of not less than 3 times; and 

 
• the Company shall not declare dividends in excess of 50% of its net profit after tax through the 

tenure facilities. 
 
In 2019, the Company distributed dividends in excess of 50% of its net profit after tax, which caused 
a technical breach of one of the covenants for the bank loan facility. The Company has obtained a 
written waiver of this breach from the bank subsequently to the end of the financial year. As a result 

of the breach and subsequent receipt of the waiver obtained on March 2, 2020, the Company did not have 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement as of December 31, 2019 and accordingly, has reclassified 
its total bank loan amounting to $34.4 million to current liability in the statement of financial position 
as of December 31, 2019. 
 
On September 2, 2020, the Company obtained a loan covenant waiver from the bank to waive the 
restriction to distribute dividends in excess of 50% of its net profit after tax, allowing the Company to 

declare and pay dividends of up to 100% of its 2020 net profit after tax. The Company was in 
compliance with its financial covenants for the year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
 
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
 

The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities,  
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for 
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of cash 
flows as cash flows from financing activities. 
 

  
January 1, 

2020 
Financing 

cash flows(i) 
Other 

changes (ii) 
December 31,  

2020 

  $ $ $ $ 

      

 Lease liabilities 3,404,179 (3,260,930) 2,736,938 2,880,187 

 Bank loans 34,421,513 4,535,867 1,349,370 40,306,750 
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January 1, 

2019 

Financing 

cash flows (i) 

Other 

changes (ii) 
December 31,  

2019 

  $ $ $ $ 

      

 Lease liabilities 6,509,719 (3,405,269) 299,729 3,404,179 

 Bank loans 30,547,922 2,420,072 1,453,519 34,421,513 

 
 
(i) The cash flows make up the net proceeds from borrowings and repayment of lease liabilities in 

the statement of cash flows. 
 
(ii) Other changes include interest accruals, deferred charges, acquisition of right-of-use and lease 

liabilities, and gain on early termination of right-of-use assets. 
 
 

19 LEASE LIABILITIES 

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

Minimum lease payments    

    
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 

   (shown under current liabilities)  2,880,187 1,828,714 
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months  
   and not later than 5 years  - 1,575,465 

  2,880,187 3,404,179 

 
 
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.  
 
 

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

  2020 2019 

  $ $ 

    

    

Deferred tax liabilities  18,683 233,000 

 
 

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Company and movement thereon 
during the year: 

 Provisions 

Accelerated 
tax 

depreciation Others Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

     

At January 1, 2019 (353,834) 722,000 (6,000) 362,166 

Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 24) 88,834 (224,000) 6,000 (129,166) 

At December 31, 2019 (265,000) 498,000 - 233,000 

Credit to profit or loss (Note 24) (142,307) (72,010) - (214,317) 

At December 31, 2020 (407,307) 425,990 - 18,683 
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21 SHARE CAPITAL 

  2020 2019 2020 2019 

  Number of shares $ $ 
 At beginning of year and  

   end of year 800,700 800,700 2,001,749 2,001,749 

 
 
Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and a right to dividends 
as and when declared by the Company. 

 
 

22 REVENUE 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

Over time   

   

Omnichannel CX solutions 83,356,608 63,557,780 

Sales and marketing 35,285,607 20,522,720 

Content monitoring and moderation 80,169,894 61,526,374 

Workspace and payroll services 1,311,991 3,591,293 

 200,124,100 149,198,167 

 
 

23 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Interest income 820,286 1,405,069 

Dividend income (Note 5) 33,773,225 14,687,268 

Government grant 6,094,276 542,858 

Rent concessions 191,532 - 

Others 2,452,767 2,395,309 

 43,332,086 19,030,504 

 
 
In 2020, the Company received wage support for local employees under the Jobs Support Scheme 

(“JSS”) amounting to $6.3 million from the Singapore Government as part of the Government’s 
measures to support businesses during the period of economic uncertainty impacted by COVID-19. 
Grant income is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period of uncertainty in 
which the related salary costs for which the grant is intended to compensate is recognised as expenses. 
Grant income in relation to JSS recognised during the year amounted to $5.3 million (2019: $Nil). 
 
In 2020, the Company received rental rebate of $81,612 relating to the property tax rebate from the 

Government which was mandated to be fully passed on by the landlord to the Company as a tenant. 
The Company recognised the amount as rent concessions in profit or loss and the receivable for 
rental rebate has been offset against the lease liability. 
 
In 2020, the Company received rental rebate of $109,920 for the leased offices under the Rental Relief 
Framework as mandated by the Government. The rental rebate has been accounted for as rent 
concessions in profit or loss as negative variable rent and the receivable for rental rebate has been 

offset against the lease liability. 
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

Income tax:   

   - Current year 8,082,700 4,722,345 

   - (Over) Under provision of prior years (135,377) 57,790 

 7,947,323 4,780,135 

Deferred tax:  

   - Current year (Note 20) (214,317) (129,166) 

  

Foreign withholding tax 432,425 21,418 

 8,165,431 4,672,387 

 
 
The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 
Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2019 : 17%) to profit before income tax as a result of the following 
differences: 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Profit before income tax 83,885,318 39,756,679 

  

Tax at the domestic income tax rate 14,260,504 6,758,635 
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 
   in determining taxable profit 435,448 444,027 

(Over) Under provision in prior years (135,377) 57,790 

Tax exempt income and tax rebates (6,802,264) (2,529,329) 

Foreign withholding tax 432,425 21,418 

Others (25,305) (80,154) 

Tax expense for the year 8,165,431 4,672,387 

 
 

25 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 
 

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Directors’ remuneration 918,000 2,224,000 

   

Employee benefits expense (including director’s remuneration):   

   

Defined contribution plan 3,649,983 3,134,409 

Other short-term benefits 65,054,023 57,651,064 

Total employee benefits expense 68,704,006 60,785,473 

   

   

Utilities expense # 439,048 562,588 

Foreign exchange loss - net # 286,076 260,279 

Depreciation expense 7,208,664 7,871,875 
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# These are included in other operating expenses. 

 
 

26 COMMITMENTS 
 
Lease commitments for leases of low-value assets are as follows: 

 2020 2019 

 $ $ 

   

Payable within one year 580,906 565,088 

Payable in the second to fifth year inclusive 329,523 479,076 

 910,429 1,044,164 

 
 

27 DIVIDENDS 
 
During the financial year ended December 31, 2020, the Company declared and paid interim  
tax-exempt dividends of $88.05 per ordinary share (2019 : $48.08 per ordinary share) totalling 
$70,500,000 (2019 : $38,500,000) in respect of the financial year ended December 31, 2020  
(2019 : December 31, 2019). 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
 
 
 
The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended December 31, 2021. 

 
In the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements of the Company as set out on  
pages 6 to 43 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at  
December 31, 2021 and the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the 
financial year then ended and at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that 
the Company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 

 
 
1 DIRECTORS 

 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are: 
 
Laurent Bernard Marie Junique 

Tay Hui Kiang 
 
 

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS 
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 
Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 

arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of 
the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
 

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the 

share capital of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ 
shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 except 
as follows: 

 
Shareholdings registered  
in the name of director 

Shareholdings in which 
director is deemed  
to have an interest 

   

Name of director and  
companies in which  
interests are held 

At beginning  
of year, or at 

date of 
incorporation 

At end  
of year 

At beginning  
of year 

At end  
of year 

     

Laurent Bernard Marie Junique     

     

Ultimate holding company     

TDCX Inc.  - - - 123,500,000 

(Ordinary shares)     

     

Intermediate holding company     

TDCX (KY) Pte. Ltd.     

(Ordinary shares) 1 - - 1 
 
 

By virtue of section 7 of the Singapore Companies Act 1967, Laurent Bernard Marie Junique is deemed 
to have an interest in all the related corporations of the Company. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TDCX (SG) Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”), which comprise the
statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 6 to 43.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
(“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021
and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in
the Directors’ Statement set out on pages 1 to 2.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss
from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability
of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company incorporated
in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

June 30, 2022
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 2021 
 
 
 Note 2021 2020 

  $ $ 

ASSETS    

    

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 7 7,471,473 14,645,628 

Fixed deposits 8 - 644,813 

Pledged deposits 9 1,900,000 - 

Trade receivables 10 55,225,699 9,354,330 

Contract assets 11 20,578,969 26,896,965 

Other receivables 12 30,666,735 13,566,964 

Total current assets  115,842,876 65,108,700 

    

Non-current assets    

Pledged deposits 9 - 1,900,000 

Other receivables 12 899,092 30,715,083 

Subsidiaries 13 1,217,618 842,386 

Plant and equipment 14 2,213,998 3,743,484 

Right-of-use assets 15 8,633,368 2,725,389 

Total non-current assets  12,964,076 39,926,342 

    

Total assets  128,806,952 105,035,042 

    

    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

    

Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables 16 40,808,098 21,275,465 

Provision for reinstatement cost 17 - 1,024,000 

Bank loans 18 13,211,160 24,170,314 

Lease liabilities 19 2,650,269 2,880,187 

Income tax payable  10,587,171 9,197,581 

Total current liabilities  67,256,698 58,547,547 

    

Non-current liabilities    

Provision for reinstatement cost 17 1,024,000 - 

Bank loans 18 2,962,800 16,136,436 

Lease liabilities 19 6,011,827 - 

Deferred tax liabilities 20 405,372 18,683 

Total non-current liabilities  10,403,999 16,155,119 

    

Capital and reserves    

Share capital 21 2,001,749 2,001,749 

Retained earnings  49,144,506 28,330,627 

Total equity  51,146,255 30,332,376 

    

Total liabilities and equity  128,806,952 105,035,042 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

 Note 2021 2020 

  $ $ 

    

Revenue 23 265,690,127 200,124,100 

    

Other operating income 24 5,058,947 43,332,086 

    

Employee benefits expense  (83,296,494) (68,704,006) 

    

Sub-contracting costs  (113,024,365) (76,040,604) 

    

Depreciation expense  (4,946,805) (7,208,664) 

    

Rental and maintenance expenses  (1,876,545) (1,757,873) 

    

Recruitment expense  (2,102,110) (1,218,101) 

    

Transport and travelling expenses  (70,280) (274,246) 

    

Telecommunication and technology expense  (1,141,337) (884,772) 

    

Other operating expenses  (3,550,388) (2,043,807) 

    

Finance costs  (946,596) (1,438,795) 

    

Profit before income tax  59,794,154 83,885,318 

    

Income tax expense 25 (10,543,385) (8,165,431) 

    

Profit for the year, representing total    

   comprehensive income for the year 26 49,250,769 75,719,887 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
 
 
  Share Retained  

 Note capital earnings Total 

  $ $ $ 
     

Balance at January 1, 2020  2,001,749 23,110,740 25,112,489 

     

Profit for the year, representing total     

   comprehensive income for the year  - 75,719,887 75,719,887 

     

Transaction with owners,     

   recognised directly in equity:     

   Dividends 28 - (70,500,000) (70,500,000) 

     

Balance at December 31, 2020  2,001,749 28,330,627 30,332,376 

     

Profit for the year, representing total     

   comprehensive income for the year  - 49,250,769 49,250,769 

     

Transaction with owners,     

   recognised directly in equity:     

   Dividends 28 - (28,436,890) (28,428,890) 

     

Balance at December 31, 2021  2,001,749 49,144,506 51,146,255 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Operating activities   

Profit before income tax 59,794,154 83,885,318 

Adjustments for:   

Depreciation expense 4,946,805 7,208,664 

 Loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries - 13,252 

Interest expense 946,596 1,438,795 

Interest income (1,015,150) (820,286) 

Dividend income (248,219) (33,773,225) 

Bank facility fee 54,368 54,368 

Loss on disposal and write-off of plant and equipment 14,005 - 

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 64,492,559 58,006,886 

   

Trade receivables (45,871,369) 11,634,999 

Contract assets 6,317,996 (18,445,250) 

Other receivables 12,730,859 (1,258,002) 

Trade and other payables 19,532,633 4,844,415 

Cash generated from operations 57,202,678 54,783,048 

   

Interest received 1,000,511 815,473 

Income tax paid (8,767,106) (3,679,230) 

Net cash from operating activities 49,436,083 51,919,291 

   

Investing activities   

Purchase of plant and equipment  (471,502) (207,373) 

Decrease in fixed deposits 644,813 - 

Dividend income received 248,219 23,891,225 

Investment in a subsidiary (375,232) - 

Net cash from investing activities 46,298 23,683,852 

   

Financing activities   

Dividends paid (28,436,890) (70,500,000) 

Proceeds from loans and borrowings - 12,000,000 

Payment of bank loans (24,006,000) (6,080,000) 

Repayment of lease liabilities (3,249,390) (3,260,930) 

Interest paid (964,256) (1,384,133) 

Net cash used in financing activities (56,656,536) (69,225,063) 

   

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,174,155) 6,378,080 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,645,628 8,267,548 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 7) 7,471,473 14,645,628 
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1 GENERAL 

 
The Company (Registration No. 199507681R) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal  
place of business and registered office at 750D Chai Chee Road, #06-01/06 ESR Bizpark @ Chai Chee, 
Singapore 469004. The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars. 
 
The principal activities of the Company are the provision of outsourced contact center services 

comprising sales and digital marketing, omnichannel customer experiences (“CX”) and social media 
content monitoring and moderation. 
 
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 were authorised for 
issue by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2022. 
 
 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical 
cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with 
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act 1967 and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore 
(“FRSs”). 
 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of 

an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which 
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is 
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of 
FRS 102 Share-based payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 116 Leases, and 
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in 
FRS 36 Impairment of Assets. 

 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
 
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On January 1, 2021, the Company adopted all the 

new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) and amendments to FRS that are 
relevant to its operations. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS 
does not result in changes to the Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the 
disclosures or on the amounts reported for the current or prior years except as discussed below. 
 
 

Impact of the initial application of Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 
Amendment to FRS 116 
 
In 2020, the Company early adopted Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to FRS 116) 
that provided practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct 
consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to FRS 116 Leases. This practical 
expedient was available to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affected 

payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021. 
 
In March 2021, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued Covid-19 Related Rent 

Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the practical expedient to 
apply to reduction in lease payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022.  
 
In the current financial year, the Company has applied the amendment to FRS 116 (as issued by the 

Board in May 2021) in advance of its effective date. 
 
The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent 
concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in 
lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession the same way it would account 
for the change applying FRS 116 if the change were not a lease modification.  

 
The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 
and only if all of the following conditions are met: 
 
a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially 

the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 
 

b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 
(a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before  
June 30, 2022 and increased lease payments that extend beyond June 30, 2022); and 

 
c) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. 
 
 

Impact on accounting for changes in lease payments applying the exemption 

 

The Company has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent concessions that meet the 
conditions in FRS 116:46B, and has not restated prior period figures. 
 
In 2020, the Company has benefited from an average 2 months waiver of lease payments on leased 

office space. The waiver of lease payments of $0.2 million has been accounted for as a negative 
variable lease payment in profit or loss. The Company has derecognized the part of the lease liability 
that has been extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments, consistent with the requirements of  
FRS 109:3.3.1. There was no waiver of lease payments in 2021. 
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At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following amendments to FRSs that are 

relevant to the Company were issued but not yet effective: 
 
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 
 
Amendments to FRS 110 and 
FRS 28 

Sale or Contribution of Assets between Investor and its 

Associate or Joint Venture 

Amendments to FRS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

Amendments to FRS 103  Reference to the Conceptual Framework 

Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use 

Amendments to FRS 37 Onerous Contracts–Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 

Amendment to FRS 1 and FRS 
Practice Statement 2 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies   

 

Amendments to FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 

Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates 

 
Amendments to FRS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 

arising from a Single Transaction 

 
Management anticipates that the adoption of the above amendments to FRS in future periods will not 
have a material impact on the financial statements in the period of their initial adoption. 
 
 
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 

have not been prepared as the Company itself is a wholly-owned subsidiary of another company. 
Consolidated financial statements are prepared and published by the ultimate holding company, TDCX 
Inc., incorporated in Cayman Islands, whose principal office address is 750D Chai Chee Road,  
#06-01/06 ESR Bizpark @ Chai Chee, Singapore 469004. 
 
In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary corporations are carried at cost less 
any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or loss. 

 
 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement 
of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.  
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables 
that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit  
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities,  
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in 
profit or loss. 
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Financial assets 

 
Classification of financial assets 

 
Debt instruments mainly comprise bank balances and trade and other receivables which meet the 
following conditions and are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 
 

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 
• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
 

Amortised cost and effective interest method 

 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and 
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 
 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts  
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the 
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying 
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 
 
The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for 
any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised 
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 
 
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured 
subsequently at amortised cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 

 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand, demand deposits 
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturities of three months or 

less. 
 
 
Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) trade and other 

receivables and contract asset. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date 
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. 
 
The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these 
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an 
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 

including time value of money where appropriate. 
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For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the 
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures 
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment 
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood  
or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being 
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

 
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime 
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within  
12 months after the reporting date. 
 
 

Significant increase in credit risk 

 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of 
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative 
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 

information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered 
includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Company’s debtors operate, as well as 
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to 
the Company’s core operations. 
 
The Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition when contractual payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the Company has 
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 
 
The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting 
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a 
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations 

in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, 
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 
 
The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria 
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 
 

 
Definition of default 

 
The Company considers for internal credit risk management purposes and based on historical 
experience, that an event of default to have occurred when there is information obtained from internal 
or external sources that indicates the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company. 

 
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial 
asset is more than 120 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information 
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. 
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Credit-impaired financial assets 

 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. These events include evidence that 
there is significant financial difficulty of the debtors or it is becoming probable that the debtor will 
enter bankruptcy. 
 

 
Write-off policy 

 
The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is 
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty 
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets  
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, 

taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
 
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

 
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of 

the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented 
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. 
 
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 

the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 
If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the 
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount 
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date. 
 

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 
 
 
Derecognition of financial assets 
 
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 

borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or 
loss. 
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

 
Classification as debt or equity 
 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

 
 
Equity instruments 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs. 

 
 
Trade and other payables 
 
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense 
recognised on an effective yield basis, except for short-term payables when the recognition of interest 

would be immaterial. 
 
 
Bank loans 
 
Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.  
 
 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

 
 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method, on the following bases: 

  Years 
   
Leasehold improvements - Shorter of the useful lives or the lease terms 

(ranging from 2 to 6 years) 
Furniture and fittings - 5 
Office equipment and software - 3 to 5 
 

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 

 
 

  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2021 
 
 
 

17 
 
 

 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and the useful life of the 

underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use 
asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset 
is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.  
 
A plant or equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 

a plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
 
IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the 
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. 
 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. 
 
 

PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 

the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect 
of the time value of money is material). 
 
When some or all other economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
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LEASES - The Company leases office space to run its operations. 
 
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract on the 
basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding 
lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term 
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets  
(such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern 
in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date. The lease payment shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the 
incremental borrowing rate. The Company’s incremental borrowing rate is determined based on the 
interest rate of the Company’s bank loans if the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value of the  
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. 
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 
• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives 

receivable; 
 
• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;  
 
• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
 
• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease. 
 
The lease liability is presented as a separate line (current and non-current) in the statement of financial 
position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on 
the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect 
the lease payments made. 
 
The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) whenever: 
 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting 

in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting 
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change 
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). 

 
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, 

in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by 
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the 
modification. 
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,  

lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and 
any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 
 
Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a lease improvement 
asset and restore the underlying lease assets to their original condition required by the terms and 

conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized to the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use 
asset. 
 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of contracted lease term and useful life of 
the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the  
right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related  
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts 

at the commencement date of the lease. 
 
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 
 
The Company applies FRS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for 
any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Plant and Equipment’ policy. 
 

 
REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract 
with a customer and recognized as and when control of a service is transferred to a customer. 
 
Revenues are recognized upon the application of the following steps: 
 

1. Identification of the contract or contracts with a customer; 

2. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract; 

3. Determination of the transaction price; 

4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and 

5. Recognition of revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. 

 
The Company enters into master services agreements and statements of work which set out the details 
of the work streams for each campaign to be provided to the customers. The work streams are 
generally capable of being distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations. Based on 
the transaction price as set up in the agreement for each performance obligation, the Company will 
invoice to the customers on a monthly basis as each performance obligation is satisfied after agreeing 
with the customers on any fee adjustments based on whether the Company meets (or the failure to 

meet) certain key performance indicators (where applicable) during that month. The Company 
recognizes the revenue using the right to invoice practical expedient as the output method because 
the amount it has the right to invoice corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the 
Company’s performance completed to date, and any variable consideration would be resolved at the 
point of billing. 
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A contract asset is recorded when revenue is recognized prior to invoicing and a contract liability is 

recorded when the Company invoices the customers prior to satisfying the performance obligations. 
The contracts do not include a significant financing component as the normal credit term is between 
30 to 90 days. 
 
Revenue recognized from contracts with customers is disaggregated into categories that depict how 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. 

 
• Omnichannel CX solutions - The Company provides omnichannel CX solutions by providing 

information about its clients, products and services to their customers. The objective is to help 
its clients manage their relationships with their customers. This includes technical support for 
software, consumer electronic devices and telemarketing campaigns. Customer contact occurs 
through phone call, online chat, SMS, email and a variety of other channels and are typically on 
general enquiries or after-sales service issue resolution. Each service is viewed as one 

performance obligation and revenue is recognized over time by using the output method when 
the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the service 
performed to date. 

 
• Sales and digital marketing - The Company provides sales and marketing services through 

contacts made by the Company’s sales and digital marketing agents with the objective to 
promote and sell the products of its customers. This primarily involves helping the digital 

advertising platform clients to attract more advertisers and grow their Internet and social media 
advertising businesses. Each scope of service is viewed as one performance obligation and 
revenue is recognized over time by using the output method when the performance obligation 
is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the service performed to date. 

 
• Content monitoring and moderation - The Company provides content monitoring and moderation 

services to a customer by way of content moderating, identification review, authenticity and 
access flows and other related services. This is performed through review of social media 
platforms for content that violates terms of service or is illegal pursuant to the specifications and 
guidelines provided by the client. Revenue is recognized over time by using the output method 
when the performance obligation is satisfied on a monthly basis measured by the value of the 
service performed to date. 

 

• Other business process services - The Company provides other services comprising workspace 
through provision of fully equipped and serviced workstations, provision of payroll and human 
resource administration services to some of its customers and other business processing 
services. Revenue is recognized over time when the performance obligation is satisfied on a 
monthly basis measured by the value of the service performed to date. 

 
Value of the service performed is determined based on the hours incurred multiplied by a fixed rate 

as stipulated in the contract. Any variabilities in the transaction price are resolved before each billing. 
 
The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient provided in FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts 

with Customers, to recognize revenue in the amount to which it has the right to invoice and has not 
disclosed the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that 
are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the end of the reporting period. 

 
The Company incurred certain costs such as personnel and travel costs, hiring, onboarding and training 
employees and capital expenditures incurred in infrastructure, renovation and leases of office space 
which are incidental to its contracts with the customers. FRS 115 requires an entity to recognize an 
asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer if the costs are not within the scope 
of another FRS Standard, and only if those costs meet all the following criteria: 
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• the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Company can 

specifically identify; 
 
• the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying  

(or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and 
 
• the costs are expected to be recovered. 

 
The Company recognized costs as expenses as they are incurred when they relate to personnel and 
travelling, hiring and training employees when they do not meet the criteria above. In cases where 
the start-up costs to fulfil a contract includes capital expenditures in infrastructure, renovation and 
leases of offices space, those costs are recorded based on the guidance included in FRS 16 Property 

Plant and Equipment and FRS 116. 

 

 
Interest income 
 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable. 
 
 

GOVERNMENT GRANTS - Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance 
that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. 
 
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 
Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. 
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, 

construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and equipment) are 
recognised as deferred income in the statement financial position and transferred to profit or loss on 
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.  
 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are 
recognised in income or expenditure in the period in which they become receivable. 

 
 
BORROWING COSTS - All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they 
are incurred. 
 
 
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged 

as an expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. 
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident 
Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Company’s obligations under 
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 
 
 

EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - The ultimate holding company operates equity-settled and cash-settled 

share-based compensation plans that are extended to the employee of the Company. The value of the 
employee services received in exchange for the shares of the ultimate holding Company is recognised 
as an expense in profit or loss and payable to ultimate holding company. 
 
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed 
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the ultimate holding company’s estimate of 

the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each reporting date, the ultimate holding 
company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the 
effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,  
if any, is recognized in the Company’s profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the 
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to payable to the ultimate holding company. 

 
 

INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items 
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that 
are not taxable or tax deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 
A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is 
considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are 
measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based 
on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect 
of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice. 

 
Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 

combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor 
the accounting profit.  
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax 
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests 

are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against 
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 

part of the asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects,  
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net 
basis. Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when 
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively.  

 
 
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The financial statements of the Company 
are measured and presented in Singapore dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (its functional currency). 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the 

Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. At the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences 
arising on the settlement of monetary items and on retranslation of monetary items are included in 
profit or loss for the period. 
 
 

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

 
In applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is required 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based 
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 

 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 
 
 

Critical judgements in applying the entity accounting policies 

 
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management did not make any material judgements 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements apart from those 
involving estimates as discussed below. 
 
 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below: 
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(a) Contract assets 

 
Unbilled receivables are balances owed by the customers that arise from services performed. 
Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the 
point at which it is invoiced to the customer. 
 
The Company recognises unbilled receivables based on the rate set up in the agreement and 

hour incurred. The final billing is subject to discussion with customers, after agreeing with the 
customer on any fee adjustments based on whether the Company meet (or the failure to meet) 
certain key performance indicators (where applicable) during that month, actual billing may be 
different from unbilled receivables. The carrying amount of the contract assets at the end of the 
reporting period are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. 
 
 

(b) Impairment in value of investment in subsidiaries 
 
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. 
The Company follows the guidance of FRS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether its 
investments in subsidiaries are impaired. This determination requires significant judgement.  
In making this judgement, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the market and 
economic environment in which the subsidiaries operate, economic performance of these entities, 

the duration and extent to which the cost of investments in these entities exceed their net 
tangible assets values and fair value of investments less cost to sell. 
 
During the year, the management has assessed the carrying value of the Company’s investment 
in subsidiaries by considering the financial performance and net tangible assets of the respective 
subsidiaries and as of December 31, 2021, the allowance for impairment in subsidiaries 

amounted to $249,999 (2020 : $249,999). 
 
If the performance of the respective subsidiaries and/or market conditions were to deteriorate 
which will affect the Company’s investments in subsidiaries, additional impairment may be 
required. The carrying amount at the investment in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 13. 
 
 

(c) Share-based payments 
 
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are 
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes 
the effect of non-market-based vesting condition.  
 
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is 

expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the ultimate holding 
company’s estimate of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest.  
 
At each reporting date, the ultimate holding company revises its estimate of the number of 
equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting 
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in the 

Company’s profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a 
corresponding adjustment to payable to the ultimate holding company.  
 
Details regarding the determination of fair value of equity-settled share-based transaction are 
set out in Note 22.  
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 
(a) Categories of financial instruments 

 
The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period: 
 

  2021 2020 

  $ $ 

 Financial assets   

 Financial assets at amortized cost  95,735,187 69,689,840 

    

    

 Financial liabilities   

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 56,982,058 60,421,500 

 Lease liabilities 8,662,096 2,880,187 

 
 

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives 

 
The Company’s overall risk management policy seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on 
financial performance of the Company. There has been no change to the Company’s exposure 
to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk. The risks 
associated with these financial instruments and the policies to mitigate these risks are set out 
below. 
 

 
(i) Credit risk management 

 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company’s credit risk is primarily 
attributable to its cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, contract assets and other 
receivables. 

 
As at December 2021, approximately 97% (2020 : 67%) of the Company’s trade 
receivables arose from two customers (2020 : two customers). Apart from this,  
the Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or 
any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Company defines 
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. 

 
Cash and cash equivalents are placed with credit-worthy financial institutions with high 
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies and therefore credit risk is 
limited, the Company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and 
monitoring its credit risk. Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit 
over a certain amount. Before accepting any new customer, the Company varies out 
research on the credit risk of the new customer and assess the potential customer’s credit 

quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed 
when necessary. 
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The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 

 
Category 
 

Description 
 

Basis for recognising 
expected credit losses 
(ECL) 
 

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and 
does not have any past-due amounts. 
 

12-month ECL 

Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due or there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. 

 

Lifetime ECL -  
not credit-impaired 

In default Amount is more than 120 days past due or there 
is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired. 
 

Lifetime ECL -  
credit-impaired 

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in 
severe financial difficulty and the Company has no 
realistic prospect of recovery. 
 

Amount is written off 

 
 
The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets (excluding cash 
and cash equivalents) and contract assets as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by 
credit risk rating grades: 
 

 
 Note 

Internal 

credit rating 

12-month or 

lifetime ECL 

Gross carrying 

amount 

Loss 

allowance 

Net carrying 

amount 

     $ $ $ 

 2021       

        

 Trade receivables 10 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified 

approach) 

55,225,699 - 55,225,699 

        

 Contract assets 11 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified 

approach) 

20,578,969 - 20,578,969 

        

 Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 31,138,015 - 31,138,015 

      -  

        

        

 2020       

        

 Trade receivables 

10 (a) Lifetime ECL 

(Simplified 

approach) 

9,354,330 - 9,354,330 

        

 Contract assets 

11 (a) Lifetime ECL 
(Simplified 

approach) 

26,896,965 - 26,896,965 

        

 Other receivables 12 (a) Performing 43,880,761 (13,252) 43,867,509 

      (13,252)  

 
 
(a) The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using an 

allowance matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the 
past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions 
and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of 
these assets is presented based on their past due status.  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2021 
 
 
 

27 
 
 

 

(ii) Interest rate risk management 

 
Interest rate risk arises from the potential changes in interest rates that may have an 
adverse effect on the Company in the current reporting period and future years. 
 
The Company’s primary interest rate relates to interest-bearing bank loan. The interest 
rate and terms of repayment of bank loan are disclosed in Note 18 of the financial 

statements. 
 
The sensitivity analyses has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for 
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change 
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the 
reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point 
increase or decrease is used and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably 

possible change in interest rates. 
 

As at December 31, 2021, it is estimated that a 50 basis point change in interest rates will 
affect the Company’s profit before tax by $60,454 (2020 : $176,481). 
 
 

(iii) Foreign currency risk management 

 
The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuations in United States Dollar (2020 : United States 
Dollar and Malaysia ringgit) with its functional currency. 
 
At the end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of significant monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional 

currency are as follows: 

  Assets Liabilities 

  2021 2020 2021 2020 

  $ $ $ $ 

      

 United States Dollar 34,459,000 29,384,442 23,628,713 12,443,790 

 Malaysia ringgit - 9,882,000 - 129,388 

 
 
The sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk to key management 
personnel is 5%, which is the change in foreign exchange rate that management deems 
reasonably possible which will affect outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary 
items at period end. If the Singapore dollar strengthens/weakens by 5% against the 
relevant foreign currencies, profit or loss will increase/(decrease) by: 

 
  2021 2020 

  $ $ 
    
 United States dollar 541,514 847,033 

 Malaysia ringgit - 487,631 

 
 

The increase in carrying amount of monetary assets is due to an increase in outstanding 
trade receivables primarily driven by the increase in revenue and the increase in monetary 
liabilities denominated in USD is due to the expansion of the Company’s business in regions 
that transact in USD. 
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(iv) Liquidity risk management 
 
Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The Company 
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and internally generated cash flows to 
finance its operations. The Company mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining some standby 
credit lines available. 
 
The Company has access to financing facilities of which $20,000,000 (2020 : $305,600) 
were unused at the reporting date. 
 

 
Non-derivative financial liabilities 
 
The following table shows cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on 
which the Company can be required to pay. The adjustments in the table represent 
estimated interest for the future period up to the maturity dates of the respective financial 
liabilities. 
 

  

Weighted 

average 
interest  

rate 

On demand 
or within  
1 year 

Within 2 to  
5 years Adjustments Total 

  % $ $ $ $ 

 December 31, 2021      

       

 Non-interest bearing - 40,808,098 - - 40,808,098 

 
Lease liabilities  
   (fixed interest rate) 3.0% 2,874,639 6,207,079 (419,622) 8,662,096 

 
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 2.5% 1,200,318 3,064,632 (181,742) 4,083,208 

 
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  1.7% to 3.3% 12,090,752 - - 12,090,752 

       

       

 December 31, 2020      

       

 Non-interest bearing - 20,114,750 - - 20,114,750 

 
Lease liabilities 
   (fixed interest rate) 2.5% to 4.4% 2,937,691 - (57,504) 2,880,187 

 
Fixed interest rate 
   instruments 2.5% 1,042,634 4,264,998 (297,015) 5,010,617 

 
Variable interest rate 
   instruments  1.6% to 3.0% 23,736,101 12,513,866 (953,834) 35,296,133 

 
 
Non-derivative financial assets 
 
All non-derivative financial assets of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are 
repayable on demand or due within one year from the end of the reporting period, and are 
non-interest bearing, except for other receivables as disclosed in Notes 9 and 12 respectively. 
 
 

(v) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities on the statement of financial 
position approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity 
of these financial instruments. The fair values of other classes of financial assets and 
liabilities are disclosed on the respective notes to the financial statements. 
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(c) Capital risk management policies and objectives 

 
Management reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Company will be 
able to continue as a going concern. The capital structure comprises only issued capital and 
retained earnings. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged. 
 

 

5 HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANIES TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TDCX Holdings Pte Ltd, incorporated in Singapore.  
Its intermediate holding company is TDCX (KY) Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Cayman Islands. With the 
restructuring exercise on March 23, 2021, TDCX Inc. incorporated in Cayman Islands became the 
Company’s ultimate holding company. The director of the Company is the ultimate controlling party 
of TDCX Inc. and held his shareholdings in TDCX Inc. through Transformative Investments Pte Ltd.  

 
Related companies refer to members of the immediate holding company’s group of companies. 
 
Some of the Company’s transactions and arrangements are between members of the holding company 
and the effect of these on the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial 
statements. The intercompany balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless 
otherwise stated. 

 
Significant transactions with holding company and related companies:  

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Ultimate holding company   

   

Share based compensation expense recharge (1,042,038) - 

   

Immediate holding company   

   

Interest income 1,014,066 814,740 

Global business services income 88,557 66,000 

Global business services expense  (2,311,304) (303,000) 

   

Subsidiaries   

   

Sub-contracting costs (58,816,018) (49,521,411) 

Dividend income 248,219 33,773,225 

Recovery of reimbursement expenses - 1,994,381 

Employee benefits expense 902,526 - 

   

Related companies   

   

Sub-contracting costs (54,208,348) (26,519,193) 
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6 REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL  

 
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows: 
 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Short-term benefits 1,224,384 2,314,626 

Post-employment benefits 17,340 45,900 

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 1,042,038 - 

 2,283,762 2,360,526 

 
 
Other than remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel as disclosed 
above, no related party transactions occurred during the year. 
 

 
7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Cash on hand 3,000 509 

Cash at bank 7,468,473 14,645,119 

 7,471,473 14,645,628 

 
 

8 FIXED DEPOSITS 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Fixed deposits - 644,813 

 
 
In 2020, fixed deposits bear interest at an effective interest rate of 0.75% per annum and for tenure 

of 365 days. 
 
 

9 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Analysed as:   

Current 1,900,000 - 

Non-current - 1,900,000 

 1,900,000 1,900,000 

 
 
The deposits were pledged to a financial institution for securing bank loans (Note 18).  
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10 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Outside parties 55,225,699 9,354,330 

 
 
The credit period on rendering of service to outside parties is 30 to 45 days (2020 : 30 to 45 days). 
No interest is charge on the outstanding trade receivables. 

 
Trade receivable amounting to $428,342 (2020 : $428,342) are pledged to a guarantor for a performance 
guarantee issued in favour of a customer. 
 
Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past 
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for 

factors that are specific to the debtors, and where relevant, general economic conditions of the 
industry in which the debtors operate. 
 
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the 
current reporting period. 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the management has assessed that, based on historical 
and default experience in the collection of receivables and ECL model, the receivables are assessed to 
have low credit risk and the expected credit loss on trade receivables is assessed to be insignificant. 
 
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers based on 
the Company’s provision matrix. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not show 
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance 

based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Company’s different customer base. 
 

   Trade receivables - days past due 

   Current 
1 - 30  
days 

31 - 60 
days 

61 - 90 
days 

> 90  
days Total 

   $ $ $ $ $ $ 

  2021       

         

  
Estimated total gross  
   carrying amount at default:       

         

  Outside parties 47,279,661 4,904,968 3,041,070 - - 55,225,699 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   47,279,661 4,904,968 3,041,070 - - 55,225,699 

         

         

  2020       

         

  
Estimated total gross 
   carrying amount at default:       

         

  Outside parties 8,597,572 529,704 227,054 - - 9,354,330 

  Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

   8,597,572 529,704 227,054 - - 9,354,330 
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11 CONTRACT ASSETS 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Unbilled receivables 20,578,969 26,896,965 

 
 
Unbilled receivables are balances owed by the customers that arise from services performed.  
Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point 

at which it is invoiced to the customer. Contract assets decreased by $6,317,996 due to enhanced 
billing process (2020 : increased by $18,455,250 due to the expansion of business). 
 
Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and the future prospects of the 
industry in which the customers operate in. None of the amounts due from customers at the end of 
the reporting period is past due and management considered the amount to have low credit risk. 

 
 

12 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Prepayments 427,812 414,538 

Deposits 1,355,023 1,329,989 

Holding company (Note 5) 27,003,407 30,527,186 

Related companies (Note 5) 1,133,814 435,223 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 1,300,197 10,595,760 

Grant receivable - 722,440 

Others 345,574 270,163 

 31,565,827 44,295,299 

Less: Loss allowance for amounts due from Subsidiaries - (13,252) 

 31,565,827 44,282,047 

   

   

Analysed as:   

   Current 30,666,735 13,566,964 

   Non-current 899,092 30,715,083 

 31,565,827 44,282,047 

 
 
Non-current other receivables relate to refundable deposits for office tenancies (2020 : office tenancies 
and utilities) that are non-interest bearing and are due for repayment in 2024 (2020 : 2022 to 2023). 
The carrying amount approximates its fair value. 

 
The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 
The non-trade amount due from holding company relates to external loan borrowed and loaned to the 
holding company at the same borrowing terms as disclosed in Note 18. The balance is unsecured, 
bears interest calculated based on aggregate of margin of 3% and cost of funds of the financial 
institution lender and is repayable quarterly commencing on February 15, 2019 and will continue until 

November 15, 2023.  
 

  



 
 
 
TDCX (SG) PTE. LTD.  

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2021 
 
 
 

33 
 
 

 

For purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables are considered to have low credit risk as 

they are not due for payment at the end of the reporting period and there has been no significant 
increase in the risk of default on the receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose 
of impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal 
to 12-month expected credit losses (ECL). 
 
In determining the ECL, management has taken into account the historical default experience and the 

financial position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors that may be specific to the debtors in 
estimating the probability of default of each of these receivables, as well as the loss upon default in 
each case. Management has determined that those receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss 
other than what has been provided. 
 
Movement in loss allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries: 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Balance at beginning of year 13,252 3,792,506 

Write-off during the year (13,252) (3,792,506) 

Charge to profit or loss - 13,252 

Balance at end of year - 13,252 

 

 
13 SUBSIDIARIES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 1,467,617 1,092,385 

Less: impairment loss (249,999) (249,999) 

 1,217,618 842,386 

 
 
Movement in allowance for impairment of subsidiaries: 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

 

Balance at beginning of year 249,999 891,867 

Write-off during the year - (641,868) 

Balance at end of year 249,999 249,999 
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: 

 
 

Name of subsidiaries 

Place of 
incorporation 
and operation 

Proportion of  
ownership interest 

Proportion of  
voting power held Principal activities 

   2021 2020 2021 2020  
   % % % %  
        
 TDCX (MY) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia 100 100 100 100 Provision of sales and 

marketing, customer care 
services and disaster recovery 
site. 

        
 Teledirect  

   Telecommerce  
   (Thailand)  
   Limited 

Thailand 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99 Provision of sales acquisition, 
customer care services, and 
content monitoring. 

        
        
 Comparexpress  

   Insurance  
   Broker    
   (Thailand)  
   Limited 

Thailand 100 100 100 100 Provision of insurance 
brokerage service and online 
price comparison services. 

        
 Comparexpress 

   Pte Ltd 
Singapore 100 100 100 100 Provision of online price 

comparison portal service. 

 
 

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

  

Leasehold 

improvements 

Furniture 
and  

fittings 

Office 
equipment 

and software Total 

  $ $ $ $ 

Cost:     

   At January 1, 2020 7,978,898 1,208,221  8,445,670  17,632,789 

   Additions 87,395 19,970 100,008 207,373 

   At December 31, 2020 8,066,293 1,228,191 8,545,678 17,840,162 

   Additions 132,324 60,145 279,033 471,502 

   Disposal - - (2,103) (2,103) 

   Written off (25,900) - (90,394) (116,294) 

   At December 31, 2021 8,172,717 1,288,336 8,732,214 18,193,267 

     

Accumulated depreciation:     

   At January 1, 2020 4,416,909 271,501  5,222,578  9,910,988 

   Depreciation for the year 2,619,985 244,277 1,321,428 4,185,690 

   At December 31, 2020 7,036,894 515,778 6,544,006 14,096,678 

   Depreciation for the year 698,814 253,995 1,034,174 1,986,983 

   Disposal - - (2,103) (2,103) 

   Written off (20,772) - (81,517) (102,289) 

   At December 31, 2021 7,714,936 769,773 7,494,560 15,979,269 

     

Carrying amount:     

   At December 31, 2020 1,029,399 712,413 2,001,672 3,743,484 

     

   At December 31, 2021 457,781 518,563 1,237,654 2,213,998 
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

 Office space 

 $ 

Cost:  

   At January 1, 2020 9,072,377 

   Additions 2,593,145 

   Expired and early termination (3,723,579) 

   At December 31, 2020 7,941,943 

   Additions 8,867,801 

   At December 31, 2021 16,809,744 

  

Accumulated depreciation:  

   At January 1, 2020 5,917,159 

   Depreciation for the year 3,022,974 

   Expired and early termination (3,723,579) 

   At December 31, 2020 5,216,554 

   Depreciation for the year 2,959,822 

   At December 31, 2021 8,176,376 

  

Carrying amount:  

   At December 31, 2020 2,725,389 

  

   At December 31, 2021 8,633,368 

  
 
 
Amount recognized in profit and loss 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 2,959,822 3,022,974 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 19) 163,498 143,793 

Expenses relating to lease of low value assets 758,771 671,134 

 
 
The Company leases office space with lease term ranging from 1 to 3 years. At December 31, 2021, 

the total cash outflow for leases amounted to $3,249,390 (2020 : $3,260,930). 
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16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Trade   

   

Outside parties 691,914 486,700 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) 16,812,189 5,806,299 

Related companies (Note 5) 13,213,042 6,766,701 

 30,717,145 13,059,700 

   

Non-trade   

   

Outside parties 8,164,923 7,052,604 

Subsidiaries (Note 13) - 2,446 

Related companies (Note 5) 85,728 - 

Immediate holding company (Note 5) 798,264 - 

Ultimate holding company (Note 5) 1,042,038 - 

Deferred grant income (Note 24) - 1,160,715 

 10,090,953 8,215,765 

 40,808,098 21,275,465 

 
 
The credit period on payables is 30 to 60 days (2020 : 30 to 60 days). No interest is charged on the 
outstanding balance. 

 
The amounts due to subsidiaries and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand. 
 
 

17 PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COST 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

At beginning and end of year 1,024,000 1,024,000 

 
 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Analysed as:   

   Current - 1,024,000 

   Non-current 1,024,000 - 

 1,024,000 1,024,000 

 
 
The provision is made based on management’s best estimate for the reinstatement cost for its 
leasehold improvements, taking into account recent quotes received from contractors and is carry at 

its approximate fair value as at end of reporting period. The provision is recognised as an addition to 
leasehold improvements (Note 14) and is depreciated over its estimated useful lives. 
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18 BANK LOANS 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Secured   

   

Bank loans 16,173,960 40,306,750 

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months   

           (shown under current liabilities) (13,211,160) (24,170,314) 

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 2,962,800 16,136,436 

   

   

Interest payable (included in bank loans) 37,523 218,681 

 
 
(i) Facility I:  

 
On September 18, 2018, the Company entered into a financing facility with a financial institution 

lender and drew down a loan with principal amount of $30.4 million. The facility bears an interest 
rate of 3% over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial institution lender  
(as determined by the financial institution lender). The bank loan is denominated in Singapore 
Dollars with 20 equal quarterly repayments commencing on January 17, 2019 and matures on 
October 17, 2023. This financing facility was refinanced on April 29, 2019 as described below. 
 
On April 29, 2019, the Company entered into a revised credit facility with the financial institution 

lender to provide for borrowings in an aggregate amount of $56.5 million that includes a 
$7.6 million interest rate derivatives facility, a $20.0 million advance facility, a $27.4 million 
refinancing facility and a $1.5 million banker’s guarantee. On October 1, 2019, this revised credit 
facility was further amended to, among other things, provide for a $5.0 million foreign exchange 
facility and reduce the $7.6 million interest rate derivatives facility to $3.5 million. During the 
year ended December 31, 2020, the Company has made repayments of $6.0 million. 

 
On October 16, 2019 and March 18, 2020, the Company drew down loans of $10.0 million and  
$7.0 million respectively from the advance facility. This advance facility bears an interest rate of 
1.25% per annum over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial institution lender  
(as determined by the financial institution lender). The loans from the above advance facility 
have been fully repaid during the year ended December 31, 2021. 
 

On September 3, 2021, the Company entered into a further revised credit facility with the 
financial institution lender, which provides for borrowings in an aggregate amount of $43.7 
million that includes a $3.5 million interest rate derivatives facility, a $5.0 million foreign 
exchange facility, a $20.0 million advance facility, a $13.7 million multi-currency specific 
advance facility (“MSAF”) and a $1.5 million banker’s guarantee, as well as a U$2.0 million 
standby letter of credit. This further revised credit facility letter supersedes the financial 
institution lender’s previous credit facility letter on October 16, 2019. The MSAF is a revolving 

credit facility with nine equal quarterly reduction of $1.5 million to its facility limit, commencing 
on October 19, 2021 until the MSAF is fully repaid on October 19, 2023. During the year ended 
December 31, 2021, TDCX SG has made repayments of $1.5 million of the MSAF. The MSAF 
bears an interest rate of 1.25% per annum over the prevailing cost of funds for the financial 
institution lender (as determined by the financial institution lender). The MSAF is repayable on 
demand at the discretion of the financial institution lender.  

 
On November 18, 2021, the terms for the credit facilities were revised. As part of the revision, 
a corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company was provided as additional security. 
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(ii) Facility II: 

 
On April 30, 2020, the Company entered into a temporary bridging loan agreement with the 
same financial institution lender and subsequently on July 30, 2020, TDCX SG drew down a 
principal amount of $5.0 million. The facility bears an interest rate of 2.5% per annum.  
The bank loan is denominated in Singapore Dollar with 53 equal monthly repayments 
commencing on March 1, 2021 and matures on August 1, 2025. During the year ended December 

31, 2021, TDCX SG has made repayments of $0.9 million (2020 : $Nil).  
 
The bank loans under Facility I and Facility II are secured by: 
 
a) Personal guarantee from a director; 

b) Guarantee from the immediate holding company;  

c) Charge over a subsidiary’s pledged bank deposits; and  

d) Corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company. 
 

The bank loans contain financial covenants which require the following to be maintained: 
 
(a) The Company’s tangible net worth of not less than $25 million; 
 
(b) A ratio of the Company’s total indebtedness to tangible net worth of not more than  

2.0 times; 

 
(c) A ratio of the ultimate holding company’s consolidated total net debt to EBITDA of not 

more than 2.0 times; 
 
(d) The ultimate holding company’s consolidated debt service coverage ratio of not less than 

2 times;  
 

(e) The immediate holding company’s consolidated tangible net worth of not less than  
$42 million; and 

 
(f) The immediate holding company’s consolidated debt service coverage ratio of not less than 

3 times. 
 
The Company was in compliance with its financial covenants for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Bank loans approximate fair value at the end of reporting period. 
 
The personal guarantee from a director has been discharged on April 29, 2022. 
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

 
The table below details changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities,  
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for 
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Company’s statement of  
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. 
 

 Bank loans  

Lease 
liabilities 
(Note 19) 

 $ $ 

   

At January 1, 2020 34,421,513 3,404,179 

Financing cash flow 4,535,867 (3,260,930) 

Bank loan transaction cost 54,368 - 

Non-cash changes:  

   - Accrued interest 1,295,002 143,793 

   - Additions to lease liabilities - 2,593,145 

At December 31, 2020 40,306,750 2,880,187 

Financing cash flow (24,970,256) (3,249,390) 

Bank loan transaction cost 54,368 - 

Non-cash changes:   

   - Accrued interest 783,098 163,498 

   - Additions to lease liabilities - 8,867,801 

At December 31, 2021 16,173,960 8,662,096 

 

 
19 LEASE LIABILITIES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Minimum lease payments   

   
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 
   (shown under current liabilities) 2,650,269 2,880,187 
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months  
   and not later than 5 years 6,011,827 - 

 8,662,096 2,880,187 

 
 
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities 

are monitored by the Company’s management. Lease liabilities approximate fair value as at end of 
reporting period. 
 
 

20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Deferred tax liabilities 405,372 18,683 
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The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Company and movement thereon 

during the year: 

 Provisions 

Accelerated 
tax 

depreciation Total 

 $ $ $ 

    

At January 1, 2020 (265,000) 498,000 233,000 

Credit to profit or loss (Note 25) (142,307) (72,010) (214,317) 

At December 31, 2020 (407,307) 425,990 18,683 

Charge to profit or loss (Note 25) 384,915 1,774 386,689 

At December 31, 2021 (22,392) 427,764 405,372 

 

 
21 SHARE CAPITAL 
  2021 2020 2021 2020 

  Number of shares $ $ 
 At beginning of year and  

   end of year 800,700 800,700 2,001,749 2,001,749 

 
 
Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and a right to dividends 

as and when declared by the Company. 
 
 

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the Company has the following share-based payment arrangements with 
its ultimate holding company which were not in place in 2020.  

 
 
Performance Share Plan (equity-settled) 
 
On August 26, 2021, the board of directors approved and adopted the Performance Share Plan  
(the “PSP”) which allows the ultimate holding company to offer ordinary shares or American Depositary 

Shares (“ADSs”) to eligible employees, officers, consultants and directors who fulfil certain 
performance criteria. Under the PSP, the number of ordinary shares or ADSs awarded shall not exceed 
5.0% of the total number of issued and outstanding shares in the ultimate holding company.  
 
The number of shares granted is calculated in accordance with the performance-based formula.  
The formula rewards to eligible participants to the extent of the Group’s and the individual’s 
achievement judged against the following measures: 

 
(i) Adjusted EBITDA 

 
(ii) Group employee satisfaction score 

 
(iii) Group customer satisfaction score 

 

(iv) Total shareholder return 
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 2021 

Number of share awards for the Company  

  

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  - 

Granted during the year 297,108 

Outstanding at the end of the year 297,108 

 
 

The awards granted during the year will vest in four tranches and each tranche has its own 
performance conditions and vesting period. The weighted average fair value of the share awards at 
the grant date was U$26.51. The awards outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average 
remaining contractual life of 2.15 years. 
 
The fair value of the phantom share awards has been measured using a Monte Carlo simulation model. 

 
The inputs into the model are as follows: 
 2021 

  

Expected volatility 29.0% 

Expected term 0.45 to 3.45 

years 
Risk free rate 0.1% - 0.9% 

Expected dividend yield Nil 

 
 
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the share prices of 
comparable companies over the previous four years. The Company recognized expenses of $1,042,038 
(2020 : $Nil) during the year in respect of the equity-settled share awards.  
 

 
23 REVENUE 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Over time   

   

Omnichannel CX solutions 111,461,694 83,356,608 

Sales and marketing 68,012,140 35,285,607 

Content monitoring and moderation 85,479,693 80,169,894 

Workspace and payroll services 736,600 1,311,991 

 265,690,127 200,124,100 

 
 

24 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Interest income 1,015,150 820,286 

Dividend income (Note 5) 248,219 33,773,225 

Government grant 3,407,148 6,094,276 

Rent concessions - 191,532 

Others 388,430 2,452,767 

 5,058,947 43,332,086 
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In 2020, the Company received wage support for local employees under the Jobs Support Scheme 

(“JSS”) amounting to $6.3 million from the Singapore Government as part of the Government’s 
measures to support businesses during the period of economic uncertainty impacted by COVID-19. 
Grant income is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the period of uncertainty in 
which the related salary costs for which the grant is intended to compensate is recognised as expenses. 
Grant income in relation to JSS recognised during the year amounted to $1 million (2020 : $5.3 million). 
 

In 2020, the Company received rental rebate of $81,612 relating to the property tax rebate from the 
Government which was mandated to be fully passed on by the landlord to the Company as a tenant. 
The Company recognised the amount as rent concessions in profit or loss and the receivable for rental 
rebate has been offset against the lease liability. 

 
In 2020, the Company received rental rebate of $109,920 for the leased offices under the Rental Relief 
Framework as mandated by the Government. The rental rebate has been accounted for as rent 

concessions in profit or loss as negative variable rent and the receivable for rental rebate has been 
offset against the lease liability. 

 
 
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Income tax:   

   - Current year 10,128,550 8,082,700 

   - Over provision of prior years - (135,377) 

 10,128,550 7,947,323 

Deferred tax:  

   - Current year (Note 20) 386,689 (214,317) 

  

Foreign withholding tax 28,146 432,425 

 10,543,385 8,165,431 

 

 
The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 
Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2020 : 17%) to profit before income tax as a result of the following 
differences: 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Profit before income tax 59,794,154 83,885,318 

  

Tax at the domestic income tax rate 10,165,006 14,260,504 
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 
   in determining taxable profit 412,076 435,448 

Over provision in prior years - (135,377) 

Tax exempt income and tax rebates (429,697) (6,802,264) 

Foreign withholding tax 28,146 432,425 

Deferred tax on foreseeable dividends 365,260 - 

Others 2,594 (25,305) 

Tax expense for the year 10,543,385 8,165,431 
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26 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 

 
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Directors’ remuneration 2,283,762 918,000 

   

   

Employee benefits expense (including director’s remuneration):   

   

Defined contribution plan 4,857,097 3,649,983 

Other short-term benefits 77,337,343 65,054,023 

Equity-settled share-based payment expense 1,042,038 - 

Cash-settled share-based payment expense 60,016 - 

Total employee benefits expense 83,296,494 68,704,006 

   

   

Utilities expense # 530,736 439,048 

Foreign exchange (gain) loss - net # (64,595) 286,076 

Depreciation expense 4,946,805 7,208,664 

 
 
# These are included in other operating expenses. 
 
 

27 COMMITMENTS 
 
Lease commitments for leases of low-value assets are as follows: 

 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

   

Payable within one year 600,339 580,906 

Payable in the second to fifth year inclusive 472,089 329,523 

 1,072,428 910,429 

 
 

28 DIVIDENDS 
 
During the financial year ended December 31, 2021, the Company declared and paid interim  

tax-exempt dividends of $35.52 per ordinary share (2020 : $88.05 per ordinary share) totalling 
$28,436,890 (2020 : $70,500,000) in respect of the financial year ended December 31, 2021  
(2020 : December 31, 2020). 
 
 
 


